
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

June 14, 2023 

10:00 A.M. – 1:00 P.M.  

 

 

Location 

Double Tree by Hilton Sacramento 

2001 Point West Way 

Sacramento, CA. 95815 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

 

2. Review and Approval of March 15, 2023, Minutes 

 

3. Director’s Report 

 

4. Consent Calendar 

A. Administrative and Personnel Report 

B. Legal Report 

C. Enforcement Report 
 

Regular Calendar 

 

5. EMS Administration 

A. Legislative Report 

B. Regulations Update 

C. PDRB update  

 

6. EMS Systems 

A. CEMSIS Update 

B. APOT  

 

7. EMS Personnel  

A. Paramedic Fee Structure 

 

8. Disaster Medical Services Division 

A. Storm updates 

B. APEC conference update 

 



 

9. Items for Next Agenda 

      

10.  Public Comment 

 

11.  Adjournment 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A full agenda packet will not be provided at the meeting; however, you can 

print a full packet, including the agenda from the Department’s website at 

www.emsa.ca.gov.  This event will be held in an accessible facility.  

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services to ensure 

accessibility such as language interpreting, assisted listening device, 

materials in alternate formats or other accommodation, should contact 

Julie.McGinnis@emsa.ca.gov, no less than 7 days prior to the meeting.  
 

http://www.emsa.ca.gov/
mailto:Julie.McGinnis@emsa.ca.gov


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COMMISSION ON EMS 

Wednesday, March 15, 2023 
Embassy Suites Anaheim South 

11767 Harbor Boulevard 
Garden Grove, California 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Curtis Brown, Sean Burrows, Mark Gautreau, M.D., David Ghilarducci, M.D.,  
Thomas Giandomenico, Travis Kusman, Lydia Lam, M.D., Ken Miller, M.D., Ph.D.,  
Lori Morgan, M.D., Masaru “Rusty” Oshita, M.D., Paul Rodriguez, Kristin Thompson, 
and Atilla Uner, M.D. 
 
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Steve Barrow, James Dunford, M.D., Nancy Gordon, Jodie Pierce, Carole Snyder, and 
Todd Valeri 
 
EMS AUTHORITY STAFF PRESENT: 
Brian Aiello, Chief Deputy Director 
Hernando Garzon, M.D., Acting Medical Director 
Kent Gray, Regulations Manager 
Kim Lew, Chief, EMS Personnel Division 
Julie McGinnis, HIE Grant Program Analyst 
Tom McGinnis, Chief, EMS Systems Division 
Lou Meyer, Community Paramedicine & Triage to Alternate Destination Program 

Manager/Consultant 
Ashley Williams, Deputy Director of Legislative and External Affairs 
Leslie Witten-Rood, Chief, EMSA Office Health Information Exchange 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTORS: 
Ray Ramirez 
Amanda Ward, Crafton Hills College and California EMS Education Association 

1.  CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chair Atilla Uner, M.D., called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Thirteen 
Commissioners were present. He led the Pledge of Allegiance and reviewed the 
meeting protocols and meeting agenda. 

Chair Uner welcomed new Commissioners Lori Morgan, M.D., who replaced 
Commissioner Suver for the California Hospital Association, and David Ghilarducci, 
M.D., who replaced Commissioner Relucio as a local health officer. 

2.  REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 14, 2022, MINUTES 



2 

 

Action: Commissioner Brown moved approval of the December 14, 2022, 
Commission on Emergency Medical Services Meeting Minutes as presented. Vice 
Chair Burrows seconded. Motion carried unanimously with no abstentions. 

3. DIRECTOR’S REPORT  

Brian Aiello, Chief Deputy Director, and Hernando Garzon, M.D., Acting Medical 
Director, provided the Director’s Report: 

Administrative Announcements 

• Craig Johnson, Chief, Disaster Medical Services Division, has taken the new role 
within EMSA as Chief of Administration and Human Resources. 

• Kent Gray, Regulations Manager, has accepted a promotional opportunity with 
another state department. 

Chief Deputy Director Aiello thanked Mr. Johnson and Mr. Gray for their years of service 
and wished them the best in their new positions. 

Two staff members have been hired since the last Commission meeting: 

• Ashley Williams, Deputy Director of Legislative and External Affairs 

• Tim Reed, Chief of Disaster Medical Services 

EMSA Headquarters will be moving to another building in Rancho Cordova 
approximately one mile away. The target move-in date is the first week in April. 

Update on EMSA Goals for 2023 

• Strategic Planning: The final meeting of the External Strategic Planning Advisory 
Committee occurred in January, followed by a statewide webinar in February. 
The California EMS Strategic Plan is expected to be published by the end of 
March. The second quarter of the year will be spent in efforts to operationalize 
the strategic plan. 

• Data and Technology: Work continues on the California EMS Information 
System’s (CEMSIS) movement to version 3.5, the ePOLST Registry, and the 
Data Exchange Framework and how EMS fits into the statewide Health 
Information Exchange (HIE). 

• Partnerships and Service Orientation: Work is ongoing to build and foster 
statewide partnerships that are essential for the service industry and patients 
through operationalization of the strategic plan. 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Administrative and Personnel Report 
B. Legal Report 
C. Enforcement Report 

Chair Uner noted that 51 of 125 EMSA positions are vacant. He stated appreciation for 
the extra work staff is doing while those positions are being filled. 



3 

 

Action:  Vice Chair Burrows moved approval of all items on the Consent 
Calendar. Commissioner Brown seconded. Motion carried unanimously with no 
abstentions. The item was noted and filed. 

REGULAR CALENDAR 

5. EMS ADMINISTRATION 

A. Legislative Report 

Kent Gray, Regulations Manager, reviewed the EMSA Legislative Update of the bills 
currently being tracked and analyzed by staff, which was included in the meeting 
materials and posted on the website. 

Discussion 

Chair Uner referred to Assembly Bill (AB) 360 that prohibits excited delirium as a 
medical diagnosis and noted that this is possibly the first time the Legislature has 
prohibited diagnoses made by physicians. 

Chair Uner referred to AB 482, air ambulance services, and asked if the Air Transport 
Children’s Fund is for hospital-based air transport programs or for any transport 
program that flies children. 

Mr. Gray stated he has not yet reviewed the specifics of the bill but stated it is a transfer 
of funding. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci stated AB 360, excited delirium, may stem from the report 
out of Colorado that concluded that there is no official diagnosis of excited delirium and 
that the term was being used as a catchall diagnosis in inequitable, racial ways that 
caused harm. This is related to police officers asking the EMTs to give ketamine to 
individuals being restrained, which resulted in a death. 

Chair Uner thanked Commissioner Ghilarducci for that background. He stated no matter 
what it is called, it is a reality that law enforcement and EMS deal with every day. 
Names must be put on certain physical conditions. He questioned whether the 
Legislature is the right place to define diagnoses. 

B. Regulations Update 

Mr. Gray reviewed the Regulations Update Report of the regulations being promulgated, 
which was included in the meeting materials. He noted that the Chapter 13 draft will not 
be completed by the end of the first quarter as originally anticipated but should be ready 
for review during the second quarter. 

Discussion 

Commissioner Thompson asked when the dispatch regulation and 438 will be reviewed. 

Mr. Gray stated it is a work in progress. He has been assisting the analyst who is 
responsible for writing the text but he did not know when it will be ready for review. 

Public Comment 



4 

 

There was no public comment. 

6. EMS SYSTEMS 

A. Community Paramedicine Status Update 

Lou Meyer, Community Paramedicine & Triage to Alternate Destination Program 
Manager/Consultant, reviewed the staff report, which was included in the meeting 
materials. He noted that EMSA collaborated with community groups to develop a toolkit 
to assist in the preparations of their individual community paramedicine and triage to 
alternate destination programs and the submission of their EMS Plan Amendment. The 
toolkit was the main component of workshops for field providers held in San Diego and 
Berkeley, hosted by the CARESTAR Foundation. Local EMS agencies (LEMSAs) have 
expressed concern about the upcoming AB 1544 sunset date of January 1, 2024, for 
the programs; however, AB 767 has been introduced that proposes to extend the 
deadline to 2031. 

Mr. Meyer stated healthcare entities throughout the state have been asking about 
community paramedicine post-discharge programs. He noted that AB 767 also adds a 
post-discharge component. 

Discussion 

Commissioner Gautreau asked about the gap hospitals are trying to fill with community 
paramedicine post-discharge programs. 

Mr. Meyer stated many hospitals are trying to decrease their home health services by 
handing patients off to post-discharge programs. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci stated the sunset date in the original bill was only one barrier 
to participation for LEMSAs. Structural barriers such as the significant logistical and 
administrative burdens that were built into the original bill would cause some smaller 
LEMSAs never to apply, no matter what the sunset date was. 

Public Comment 

Ray Ramirez, Deputy Chief, City of Ontario Fire Department, and California Fire Chiefs 
Association (CalChiefs), speaking as an individual, asked how EMSA views 
telemedicine. This is an opportunity to bring telemedicine into the EMS system through 
the community paramedicine bill. He stated the need to clarify the concerns of EMSA 
and/or the medical directors and the values that can come from telemedicine. The 
federal government demonstrated that this was a viable tool in the field during the 
COVID-19 pandemic through federal and state waivers. 

Dr. Garzon stated the current system allows paramedics only to transport to acute care 
emergency departments, based on the 1973 EMS Act; however, EMS is changing and 
evolving. The EMSA is considering supporting a patient-centered approach to get 
patients the services they need. Many patients who access 911 do not need an acute 
care emergency department.  

Dr. Garzon stated things like community paramedicine allowing triage to alternate 
destinations, sobering centers, behavioral health centers, urgent care centers, and 



5 

 

many other things are on the table that have been piloted, and telehealth is one of 
those. Telehealth is growing in non-emergency settings and there are telehealth 
providers who are focused in the pre-hospital space and are staffed by emergency 
physicians. That level of expertise may be safe and appropriate to do in a pre-hospital 
setting. The EMSA’s interest and concern is keeping all developments and evolution in 
EMS patient-centered and patient-safe. 

Commissioner Miller stated there are two things happening at the same time: advancing 
technologies and communications within EMS systems such as the evolution of medical 
oversight from the traditional base hospital, and addressing whether that communication 
and that data management changes destinations or changes what is done with patients. 
He stated the hope that, as this conversation evolves, the applications of technologies 
will get wrapped into regulations that go to community paramedicine and alternate 
destination, which can be kept separate. There is room to grow with medical oversight 
of an EMS system with technologies that resemble telehealth or telemedicine but do not 
change current practices much and keep them separate. 

Commissioner Gautreau cautioned that there are significant limitations with 
telemedicine, especially when the patient is in the pre-hospital environment, and there is 
a great deal of discomfort among many physicians in employing that technology. That 
may get worked out over time but most physicians are used to physically seeing 
patients. Telemedicine may be appropriate in some applications but general acceptance 
will be slow. 

B. CEMSIS Update 

Tom McGinnis, Chief of the EMS Systems Division, reviewed the staff report, which was 
included in the meeting materials, on the background and transition process from the 
Inland Counties Emergency Management Agency (ICEMA) to the California EMS 
Information System (CEMSIS). The formal migration started in mid-January and was 
completed in mid-February. He stated appreciation for the engagement of the LEMSAs 
and ICEMA that were instrumental in making this transition. 

Chief McGinnis stated the current data standard is inadequate to allow factoring well on 
things like community paramedicine patients and other kinds of situations that are 
prevalent in EMS today. The data standard will transition from the National EMS 
Information System (NEMSIS) version 3.4 to version 3.5. This change is considered 
large in nature because it is going to functionally change a lot around the disposition 
factorings of patients who are currently in the NEMSIS standard. It is not just a change 
in software, it is also a learning curve. Providers and practitioners will need to be 
educated to understand the differences as they are documenting moving forward. 

Chief McGinnis stated the federal government will no longer accept data in the 
version 3.4 format by January 1st of next year. Versions 3.4 and 3.5 will be running 
simultaneously during the transition period to the new version. LEMSAs have been 
requested to complete their transition by October of this year, leaving November and 
December to make necessary adjustments. He noted that data submissions with the 
new standard are coming across seamlessly to date. 



6 

 

Chief McGinnis stated the CEMSIS system will be used to collect ambulance patient 
offload time (APOT) data. Staff is working with LEMSAs and the California Hospital 
Association (CHA) to ensure the data is reflective of the APOT measurements currently 
in use. 

Chief McGinnis stated, during the transition from ICEMA to in-house, there will be no 
changes to this partnership and LEMSAs will continue to have access to Biospatial 
about their specific data that comes directly from CEMSIS. 

Discussion 

Vice Chair Burrows asked if the information coming in to CEMSIS is different or better 
than previously reported APOT data. 

Chief McGinnis stated it is too soon to make an assessment, but staff is currently 
working with LEMSAs to validate data. An update may be available for the December 
meeting. 

Vice Chair Burrows asked if there is a way in CEMSIS to track exemptions granted 
through a LEMSA, such as response time exemptions. 

Chief McGinnis stated the CEMSIS program does not have the ability to show 
exemptions because it works within the NEMSIS criteria without customization due to 
high costs. 

Commissioner Morgan asked if previous NEMSIS data will be remapped in the 
transition to version 3.5. 

Chief McGinnis stated there will be new items that are only available to track and trend 
moving forward on the new standard. Prior data will not have those items available for 
comparison. 

Commissioner Morgan asked if CEMSIS has all agencies in the state, including small 
rural agencies. 

Chief McGinnis stated, to the best of his knowledge, all agencies that respond to 911 
calls using electronic health records are documented by Health and Safety Code 
mandate. He noted that staff is still working with one LEMSA to input their electronic 
health record data. 

Commissioner Thompson stated pulling APOT data from electronic Patient Care 
Reports (ePCRs) is a good way to acquire accurate data. She asked who technically 
owns electronic health record data, who can access it, and how far public records 
requests extend into EMSA. 

Chief McGinnis stated the provider agency has ownership of their record data. 
However, the record is required for quality improvement system oversight, management 
and assessment of public needs criteria, and so on, and is therefore visible to those 
who regulate and validate public needs. The data can be accessed by any LEMSAs 
where the data originates. There is no patient care level data within the system to report 
out on; it is all aggregate data. In order to access the data, an individual may submit a 



7 

 

Public Records Act request on the CEMSIS information page including the exact criteria 
necessary to run the reports.  

Commissioner Gautreau asked about the standardization of APOT data and whether 
the pending legislation that would create an electronic transfer signature would set the 
standard at the point when the nurse signs that the patient has been accepted. 

Chief McGinnis stated a transfer of time signature is an option in some current data 
platforms. In California, there are 21 different EMS software packages being operated 
throughout the state. The transfer time field is available in the larger packages but is not 
mandatory. The legislation could mandate that field for a paramedic or EMT to manually 
complete. He stated the end time of APOT is under debate, which is one of the reasons 
staff is working with LEMSA partners and hospitals, but is generally considered to end 
at the time care is turned over. 

Commissioner Gautreau suggested standardizing APOT by obtaining a signature when 
the patient transfers from the ambulance stretcher. 

Dr. Garzon stated the APOT data standard is posted on the EMSA website, along with a 
toolkit, published in 2012 and co-authored by the CHA and EMSA, that describes best 
practices around APOT and transfer of care. It recommends creating a local APOT 
committee between hospitals and EMS to document the process and method for 
transfer of care in order to establish a standard. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci stated the understanding that, while Biospatial is powerful, 
about half of the California population is not represented in the data. He asked if certain 
LEMSAs do not report data through CEMSIS. 

Chief McGinnis stated 33 LEMSAs report some of their data; only one does not report 
anything electronically at this point. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci asked about the percentage of the California population that 
LEMSAs represent. 

Chief McGinnis estimated that LEMSAs represent 33% or more. 

Commissioner Ghilarducci stated roughly two-thirds of Patient Care Records (PCRs) 
are represented in Biospatial and asked if there is an internal plan to rectify that. 

Chief McGinnis stated staff is working with that LEMSA with a target of July 1st for them 
to be able to begin to submit their data. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

C. ePOLST Update 

Leslie Witten-Rood, Chief, EMSA Office of Health Information Exchange (HIE), provided 
an update on the Physician Orders for Life-Sustaining Treatment (POLST). In July of 
2021, AB 133 directed EMSA to create an ePOLST Registry. EMSA is required to use 
the state’s Project Approval Lifecycle (PAL), which takes roughly two years to complete, 
and is ending phase two of four of that lifecycle. EMSA was allocated $10 million 



8 

 

through the General Fund and $750,000 ongoing for maintenance and sustainability 
once the system is implemented. To help with this effort, EMSA has entered into an 
interagency agreement with the Office of Statewide Integration. The process is on time 
and moving along rapidly. 

Discussion 

Chair Uner asked how quickly the ePOLST Registry can be accessed and what data is 
required to access an accurate record. 

Chief Witten-Rood stated that is currently being determined. The PAL includes 
determining and approving who can access the data legally. One of the goals of the 
project is to keep access times as brief as possible. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

7. EMS RESPONSE TO BEHAVIORAL HEALTH PATIENTS 

A. Update on Framework for Behavioral Health Crisis Response 

Dr. Garzon reviewed the staff report, which was included in the meeting materials. He 
provided an overview of the background, capacity challenges, and the Behavioral 
Health Crisis Care Continuum Plan (CCC-P). He stated the CCC-P, developed by the 
California Health and Human Services Agency (CalHHS) and stakeholders, includes 
three Strategic Pillars for the future state crisis care system: 

• Build towards consistent access statewide. 

• Enhance coordination across and outside of the crisis care continuum of care. 

• Design and deliver a high quality and equitable system for all Californians. 

Dr. Garzon stated initial implementation considerations to achieve these Strategic 
Pillars will be rolled out over the near-, medium-, and long-term with milestones to 
achieve at each stage. EMSA remains actively engaged with CalHHS and continues to 
participate in various state-level committees and planning groups for behavioral health. 
EMSA continues to promote the inclusion of local EMS systems in behavioral health 
initiatives, funding, and programs. 

Discussion 

Chair Uner stated this remains an important topic. He stated the hope that barriers for 
access, such as rural isolation and lack of resources, will be addressed as the work 
progresses. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

8.  EMS PERSONNEL 

A. Paramedic Fee Structure 



9 

 

Kim Lew, Chief, EMS Personnel Division, stated EMSA will increase paramedic fees by 
$65 to support AB 450 implementation and maintenance of the Paramedic Disciplinary 
Review Board. California fees are now the highest in the nation. This impacts 
paramedics, paramedic graduates, and paramedic providers. She stated it appears that 
the EMS structure and established legislative criteria that funds the EMS system has 
contributed to this fee increase. Preliminary research suggests that other states 
augment EMS costs through additional funds. 

Discussion 

Chair Uner stated this can be a significant burden, especially for new paramedic school 
graduates who are typically unable to work while attending paramedic school. He asked 
if there are any plans to move that back to the first renewal. 

Chief Lew stated there is no alternative at this point. An analyst is looking at fee 
structures in other states, but California may be too different to do the same at this time. 

Vice Chair Burrows agreed that this is a barrier for new paramedics. He asked if there 
are cases pending for the Paramedic Disciplinary Review Board and what happens with 
disciplinary issues that may occur between January 1st and when the Board structure is 
officially established. 

Chief Lew stated there are pending investigations but there has been no change. Staff 
is trying to push paramedic fee regulations through as quickly as possible but did not 
anticipate the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) asking for a second public comment, 
which is why Mr. Gray mentioned the OAL has approved pushing those regulations 
through rather than leaving them pending. The Board structure is still in development. 
The hiring process for individuals who will make new regulations and model disciplinary 
action documents and guidelines continues on the understanding that funding will 
increase once the paramedic fee regulations have been passed. 

Vice Chair Burrows asked when the transition will occur. 

Chief Lew stated the Board is waiting on two Governor’s Office appointees. Once 
established, the Board can start work on the regulations. 

Commissioner Morgan asked for clarification about new provider fees versus renewal 
fees. 

Chief Lew stated the current statutory structure only allows the pursuit of paramedic 
fees to support the entire EMS personnel division and its programs. In the future, initial 
fees could be rolled back, adjusted, or maintained. However, adjustments cannot be 
made to this current legislative mandate. It may be a few years before that could be 
considered. The Paramedic Disciplinary Review Board is in place, so it is something 
that could occur under statute in the future. 

Commissioner Oshita asked about the current number of applicants. 

Chief Lew stated there are approximately 27,000 applicants. The maximum amount for 
the initial licensing fee is around $400 for out-of-state initial licensees. 

Public Comment 



10 

 

Amanda Ward, Paramedic Program Director for Crafton Hills College, and representing 
the California EMS Education Association, stated she brought a letter of support from 
the San Bernardino County Fire Chiefs Association in addressing this issue. 

Ms. Ward requested an evaluation of these fees and where applicants can go. She 
stated Crafton Hills College supports Riverside and San Bernardino counties and has 
offered cohort expansion and tuition assistance as much as possible. However, 
licensure fees at program completion are partly to blame for the drastic issues in staffing 
paramedics in California. It is not only the licensure fees that must be paid; graduates 
must also pay for several exams and licenses, which can cost over a thousand dollars. 

Ms. Ward stated the college cannot assist as many as 90 paramedic students in one 
year, so students are choosing to return to EMT work and putting themselves in greater 
financial debt, or choosing to license in other states. This is not equitable and hampers 
recruitment and retention. While the acts responsible for this may be several decades 
old, she suggested going back to the drawing board and advocating for students in 
order to serve communities in the future. She thanked Chief Lew for continuing to work 
on this concern at the state level and looked forward to continued conversations and 
opportunities to adjust this issue. 

Chair Uner stated pass rate decreases the longer students wait to take their exams after 
graduating. This is counterproductive for students and the organizations that sponsor 
them. 

9. DISASTER MEDICAL SERVICES DIVISION 

 A. Response to Storms, Earthquake, and COVID 

Dr. Garzon reviewed the State Disaster Response Update, which was included in the 
meeting materials. He provided information on the Authority’s response activities to date 
and highlighted current activities underway. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

10. ELECTION OF OFFICERS (MARCH 2023 – MARCH 2024) 

Chair 

Chair Uner stated nominations for Chair from the December meeting included Vice 
Chair Burrows and Commissioner Gautreau. No additional nominations were offered. 

Commissioner Gautreau withdrew his nomination for the position of Chair. 

Action:  Commissioner Thompson nominated Vice Chair Burrows as Chair of the 
Commission on EMS for March of 2023 to March of 2024. Chair Uner seconded. 
Thirteen members of the Commission voted aye with no abstentions. 

Vice Chair 



11 

 

Chair Uner stated nominations for Vice Chair from the December meeting included 
Commissioner Gautreau and Commission Kusman. No additional nominations were 
offered. 

Action:  Commissioner Valeri nominated Commissioner Kusman as Vice Chair of 
the Commission on EMS for March of 2023 to March of 2024. One member of the 
Commission voted aye with Commissioner Kusman abstaining. 

Action:  Chair Uner nominated Commissioner Gautreau as Vice Chair of the 
Commission on EMS for March of 2023 to March of 2024. Twelve members of the 
Commission voted aye with no abstentions. 

Administrative Committee 

Chair Uner stated he will fill one Administrative Committee position as Immediate Past 
Chair. Nominations to serve on the Administrative Committee from the December 
meeting included Commissioners Brown, Miller, and Rodriquez. No additional 
nominations were offered. 

Commissioner Brown withdrew his nomination for the Administrative Committee. 

Action:  Commissioner Gautreau nominated Commissioner Miller to serve on the 
Administrative Committee from March of 2023 to March of 2024. Twelve members 
of the Commission voted aye with no abstentions. 

Action:  Commissioner Barrow nominated Commissioner Rodriguez to serve on 
the Administrative Committee from March of 2023 to March of 2024. Twelve 
members of the Commission voted aye with no abstentions. 

11.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA  

Chair Uner asked Commissioners for suggestions for the next agenda. 

Vice Chair Burrows asked for an updated report on the Paramedic Disciplinary Review 
Board, including an update on the current open disciplinary cases and how they are 
being adjudicated through that process. 

Chair Uner asked for a report on the options to change the paramedic fee structure. 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Gray stated his appreciation for the time spent with EMSA and working with the 
Commission. It has been an extraordinary time to come on board. He thanked everyone 
and wished them the best. 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Uner thanked Ramona Cota, the transcriptionist, and Jersy Vasquez, who ran the 
AV equipment, for working through technical difficulties. He thanked the Commission for 
their support during his time as Chair and congratulated the new Chair and Vice Chair. 

Chair Uner asked for a motion to adjourn. 



12 

 

Action:  Commissioner Kusman moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner 
Thompson seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 

Chair Uner adjourned the meeting at 11:36 a.m. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DR., 2ND FLOOR 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670  

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 
 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

 

 

MEETING DATE: June 14th  ITEM NUMBER: 4A 

 

SUBJECT: Administrative and Personnel Report     

 

PRESENTER: Rick Trussell, Chief of Fiscal and Administrative Unit  

  

 

CONSENT:  _X__   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: ___ 
 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

None  

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA) Budget:  

 

2023-24 

 

The Governor's Proposed Budget for 2023-24 released in January of this year includes 

expenditure authority in the amount of $53.7 million and 114 permanent positions. Of 

this amount, $30.6 million or 56.9% is delegated for State operations and $23.1 million 

or 43.1% is delegated to local assistance. 

 

As of May 31, 2023, accounting records reflect that the Department has expended 

and encumbered $55.3 million or 103% of expenditure authority available. Of this 

amount, $38.5 million or 72% of State Operations expenditure authority is expended 

and encumbered and $16.7 million or 31% of local assistance expenditure authority 

has been expended and encumbered. 

 

We continue to monitor and adjust state operations and local assistance budgets to 

meet changing program priorities. An updated report will be distributed prior to the 

next Commission meeting. 

 

 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services  

June 14, 2023 

Item #4A 

Page 2 

 

Budget Change Proposal (BCPs): 

 

Electronic Physician Order for Life-Sustaining Treatment Registry Project and the 

California Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Data Resource System Project (CEMSIS) 

 

The Office of Systems Integration requests three (3.0) permanent positions and 

$665,000 in Health and Human Services Automation Fund expenditure authority for 

fiscal year (FY) 2023-24 to provide project planning, contract management and 

various project support services for the Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA). 

This proposal supports project planning and contract management efforts in 

partnership with the EMSA for the Electronic Physician Order for Life Sustaining 

Treatment (ePOLST) Registry Project and the California EMS Data Resource System 

(CEDRS) Project, along with providing support of the California EMS Information 

System (CEMSIS). 

 

Appointment of Chief Medical Officer 

 

The Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA) requests one permanent position 

and $312,000 General Fund beginning in 2023-24 and ongoing. The additional 

resources will be utilized to establish a Chief Medical Officer (CMO) position at EMSA. 

 

California Emergency Medical Services Central Registry  

 

The Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA) requests to redirect $190,000 

General Fund, originally appropriated to support the implementation of the California 

Emergency Medical Advancement Project (CEMAP), to support planning efforts for 

the California Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Central Registry. CEMAP funding 

was included in the 2021 Budget Act to implement Chapter 138, Statutes of 2020 (AB 

1544), which authorized the Community Paramedicine (CP) or Triage to Alternate 

Destination (TAD) Act of 2020. This proposal is cost neutral, and the redirection of 

CEMAP funding will be utilized for the planning efforts associated with the 

replacement of the Central Registry. 

 

EMSA Staffing Levels: 

 

The Department staffing level included 114 permanent positions and 11 temporary 

(blanket and retired annuitant positions. Of the 125 positions, 51 positions are vacant 

as of May 31, 2023. 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
10901 GOLD CENTER DR., SUITE 400 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 
 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

 

 

MEETING DATE: June 15, 2023 ITEM NUMBER: 4B  

 

SUBJECT: Legal Report   

 

PRESENTER:  

 

CONSENT:  _X__   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: ___ 
 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

No fiscal impact. 

  

DISCUSSION 

 

NOTE: Since the start of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Office of Administrative 

Hearings and most courts in the state are conducting hearings only remotely 

through services such as Zoom, Microsoft Teams, etc. 

 

Disciplinary Cases: 

 

From February 25, 2023 to June 1, 2023, the Authority has issued eleven new 

accusations against existing paramedic licenses, including three Temporary 

Suspension Orders (TSO).  The Authority has upheld one locally initiated TSO and 

an Accusation in that case is forthcoming.  The Authority has issued one decision 

on petition for reduction of penalty.  The Authority has issued no administrative 

fines or denial letters, but has closed one matter with a warning letter being 

issued.  Of the newly issued actions, six of the Respondents requested that an 

administrative hearing be set.  Six actions have resolved by a stipulated 

settlement agreement, including two pre-Accusation agreements for surrender, 

and one action has ended by default.  There is currently one hearing scheduled 

with the Office of Administrative Hearings.  There are currently fifty-four open 

active disciplinary cases in the legal office. 

 

An administrative hearing has been held in three cases resulting in proposed 

decisions that are pending review by the Paramedic Disciplinary Review Board. 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

December 14, 2022 

Item #5B 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Litigation: 

 

Waters v. EMSA: Sonoma County Superior Court #SCV-268267, Writ of 

Administrative Mandamus.  The Authority received the Order of Dismissal and 

this matter is concluded. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DR., 2ND FLOOR 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670  

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875  

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

 

 

MEETING DATE: June 14, 2023 ITEM NUMBER: 4C 

 

SUBJECT: ENFORCEMENT REPORT    

 

PRESENTER: Alexander Bourdaniotis, Chief Investigator   

 

CONSENT:  _x_   ACTION: ___  INFORMATION: __ 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive information on Enforcement Unit activities. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

None 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Unit Staffing: 

 

The Enforcement Unit is budgeted for five full-time Special Investigators and one 

full-time Associate Government Program Analyst (AGPA-Probation Monitor). As 

of May 5, 2023, one full time Special Investigator has left the Enforcement Unit to 

join the CHP Academy. The unit is not currently fully staffed.  

 

Investigative Workload: 

 

The following is a summary of currently available data extracted from the 

paramedic database: 

 

 

 

 

 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 14, 2023 

Item # 4C 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Cases opened since January 1, 2023, including: 

 

Cases opened:                                      132 

Cases completed and/or closed:       94 

EMT-Paramedics on Probation:           180 

 

In 2022: 

Cases opened:                                     346 

Cases completed and/or closed:       246 

EMT-Paramedics on Probation:           235 

 

Status of Current Cases: 

 

The Enforcement Unit currently has 167 cases in “open” status. 

 

As of May 31, 2023, there are 64 cases that have been in “open” status for 180 

days or longer, including: 4 Firefighters’ Bill of Rights (FFBOR) cases and 7 cases 

waiting for California Society of Addiction Medicine (CSAM) evaluations. 

Respondents are directed to a physician who specializes in addiction medicine 

for an examination/review in cases involving alcohol or other substance abuse. 

 

Those 64 cases are divided among four special investigators and are in various 

stages of the investigative process. These stages include awaiting documents, 

preparing for and/or setting up interviews, report writing and corrections to be 

made, awaiting action by local law enforcement jurisdictions, the courts, etc. 

 

Delays in the interview process are common due to unforeseen difficulties in 

obtaining certified copies of documents, court records, availability of witnesses 

and/or the subject(s) of an investigation due to medical action/disability issues, 

on-going investigations for FFBOR staff or on-going criminal investigations, court 

actions, plus the routine requirement for two or more follow-up interviews.   

 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY     GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
10901 GOLD CENTER DR., SUITE 400 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

MEETING DATE: June 14, 2023 ITEM NUMBER: 5A 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER: 

Legislative Report 

Ashley Williams
Deputy Director of Legislation and 
External Affairs 

CONSENT:  ___ ACTION: ___ INFORMATION: .  X  . 

RECOMMENDATION 

Receive information regarding current bills potentially affecting EMS. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact. 

DISCUSSION 

Due to the dynamic nature of the legislative process, the Legislative Report to 

the Commission on EMS will be posted on the EMSA website at 

https://emsa.ca.gov/legislative_activity/. 

https://emsa.ca.gov/legislative_activity/


STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY     GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
10901 GOLD CENTER DR., SUITE 400 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

MEETING DATE: June 14, 2023 ITEM NUMBER: 5B 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER: 

Regulations Update 

Ashley Williams
Deputy Director of Legislation and 
External Affairs

CONSENT:  ___ ACTION: ___ INFORMATION: .  X  . 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact. 

DISCUSSION 

The following information is an update to the Emergency Medical Services 

Authority (EMSA) rulemaking. In accordance with California Health and Safety 

Code § 1797.107, the EMSA is promulgating the following regulations: 

➢ Training Standards for Child Care Providers & Merger of Chapters 1.1 and

1.2.

▪ Status: Developing ISOP
▪ Purpose: General update (to include fee increase).

➢ Public Safety-First Aid (Ch. 1.5)

▪ Status: Hold

▪ Purpose: General Update.

➢ Lay Rescuer Epinephrine Auto-Injector Training Certificate Standards (Ch.

1.9)

▪ Status: Developing ISOR and 399.
▪ Purpose: Updates, including required form.

➢ Paramedic Fees (Ch 4)



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 15, 2023
Item #5B 

Page 2 

▪ Status: Hold
▪ Purpose: Fee schedule changes based on costs

from AB 450.

➢ Administered Medications (Ch. 4 § 100146)

▪ Status: Open to public comment until June 4.
▪ Purpose: Add new medications to list under subsection (c)(1)(R)

➢ Trauma Care Systems (Ch. 7)

▪ Status: Trauma regulation workgroup meetings continue to develop 
proposed text.

▪ Purpose: General update.

➢ Emergency Medical Services System Quality Improvement (Ch. 12)

▪ Status: Developing proposed text

▪ Purpose: Addition of Data Requirements and General Update.

➢ EMS Plans (Ch. 13)

▪ Status: Review of previously submitted comments and developing 
new draft

▪ Purpose: Provide new and updated regulations for annual EMS 
plans, Requests for Proposal and general EMS administration 
required by statute.

➢ Dispatch

▪ Status: Developing proposed text

▪ Purpose: Implement SB 438 (Statutes of 2019)

➢ Address Change, Section 100
▪ Status: Developing proposed text
▪ Purpose: update EMSA address on forms incorporated by reference

➢ EMT psychomotor skill competency exams
▪ Status: Developing proposed text
▪ Purpose: update due to NREMT discontinuation of psychomotor skills 

exams

➢ AEMT and Paramedic psychomotor skills competency exams
▪ Status: Developing proposed text
▪ Purpose: update in preparation for NREMT discontinuation of 

psychomotor skills exams



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
10901 GOLD CENTER DR., SUITE 400 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 
 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

 

 

MEETING DATE: June 14, 2023 ITEM NUMBER: ___5C_ 

 

SUBJECT: Paramedic Disciplinary Review Board   

 

PRESENTER: Elizabeth Basnett, Acting EMSA Director 

  

 

CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: _X_ 
 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

AB 450 Chapter 463, Approved by the Governor and Chaptered by Secretary of 

State on October 4, 2021, created the Paramedic Disciplinary Review Board to 

act on appeals regarding the authority’s denial of licensure and decision to 

impose licensure action on and after January 1, 2023. The bill would specify the 

composition and appointment of the seven (7) member board. The bill would 

require the employer of a paramedic to report to the director of the authority and 

the board regarding the suspension or termination of a paramedic for cause 

within seventy-two (72) hours of the event and would require the board to 

consider employer-imposed discipline and other criteria to aid it in making a final 

determination regarding appeals of licensure action. The duties and activities of 

the board would be funded, upon appropriation by the Legislature, by the 

Emergency Medical Services Personnel Fund.  

 

SUMMARY 

 

Three (3) members of the board have been appointed by the Governor, two (2) 

from the Senate, and two (2) from the Assembly. EMSA is onboarding the 

Associate Governmental Program Analyst (AGPA), and in the process of hiring the 

Career Executive Assignment Officer (CEA) as well as the Board Attorney. The 

PDRB will have its kickoff meeting for introductions and board objectives, roles, 

and responsibilities on June 22, 2023.  

 

The PDRB will then hold its first case review on June 27, 2023, to make its 

determination on at least one case. Currently there are a total of three (3) cases 



awaiting PDRB determination, with the soonest needing a determination by June 

28, 2023. Additionally, the Board has several key regulations to write to establish 

the administrative fine and disciplinary process for paramedics. 

 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 International Drive, Floor 2 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 
 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

 

 

MEETING DATE: June 14, 2023 ITEM NUMBER: 6A  

 

SUBJECT: California Emergency Medical Services Information System 

Program Update   

 

PRESENTER: Tom McGinnis, Chief 

 EMS Systems Division 

 

CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: _X__ 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive information regarding the California Emergency Medical Services 

Information System (CEMSIS) program. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

None 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The EMS Authority continues to use the National Emergency Medical Services 

Information System (NEMSIS) version 3.4 which is the most current data standard. 

Out of 34 Local EMS agencies (LEMSA), 33 are currently participating at some 

level in the submission of EMS data. CEMSIS has over 4.9 million records for 2022 

and has already received over 1.8 million records for 2023. Once the final non-

participating LEMSA and the other LEMSAs who are not fulling submitting their 

data start submitting their data into CEMSIS, it is anticipated that CEMSIS will 

have approximately six (6) million records each year. We are working with the 

LEMSAs who are not submitting either part or all of their EMS data to CEMSIS to 

get their data included in the state data system. 

 

 

 

 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 14, 2023 

Item #6A 

Page 2 

 

SUMMARY 

 

CEMSIS Repository Transition: 

On January 23, 2023, the EMS Authority officially took over the CEMSIS Repository 

and is receiving EMS and Trauma data. We continue onboarding STROKE data 

while working on the STEMI repository. 

 

This transition from ICEMA was an emergency procurement to continue to 

operate and support CEMSIS. The EMS Authority will be developing a 

competitive process to meet the short-term and long-term needs based on the 

statewide and national EMS data requirements.  

 

NEMSIS 3.5 Transition: 

In 2018, NEMSIS announced version 3.5 was underway. NEMSIS finalized the data 

dictionary for version 3.5 on November 30, 2019 and is located on their website 

(www.NEMSIS.org). The change to NEMSIS V3.5 is necessary to correct errors in 

V3.4 and expand data elements related to the disposition of patients and 

incidents in the EMS system.  

 

On February 14, 2023, CEMSIS was determined compliant with NEMSIS version 3.5 

by the University of Utah. The goal is for all entities submitting data to 

CEMSIS be NEMSIS V3.5 compliant by October 31, 2023. 

 

The EMS Authority plans to hold workshops in Quarter 3 of 2023 and an after-

action workshop in Quarter 4 of 2023. Details for the workshops are still 

underway. 

 

The EMS Authority will accept both V3.4 and V3.5 data until December 31, 2023. 

Beginning January 1, 2024, the EMS Authority will only accept NEMSIS V3.5 data. 

 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 14, 2023 

Item #6A 

Page 3 

 

 
*Data ran on 5/18/2023 

 

 

 

 
*Data ran on 5/18/2023 

 

151,806

2,735,347

3,735,146
4,070,611

3,958,844
,4,590,157

4,957,913

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

CY 2016 CY 2017 CY 2018 CY 2019 CY 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

R
e

c
o

rd
s

Calendar Year

CEMSIS Data Submission 

CY 2016 - CY 2022

360,000

370,000

380,000

390,000

400,000

410,000

420,000

430,000

440,000

450,000

February 2023 March 2023

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

R
e

c
o

rd
s

Month and Year

CEMSIS EMS Data Submission 

2/01/2023 – 03/31/2023



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 14, 2023 

Item #6A 

Page 4 

 

Top 30 Primary Impressions 

Primary Impression 
Number of 

Records 

General Weakness 140,564 

Traumatic Injury 117,714 

Behavioral/Psychiatric Crisis 61,323 

Non-Traumatic Body Pain 55,645 

Abdominal Pain/Problems (GI/GU) 55,465 

No Medical Complaint 47,758 

ALOC - (Not Hypoglycemia or Seizure) 46,049 

Respiratory Distress/Other 43,779 

Pain/Swelling - Extremity - non-traumatic 29,295 

Syncope/Near Syncope 25,328 

Chest Pain - Suspected Cardiac 24,830 

Seizure - Post 20,336 

Nausea/Vomiting 18,668 

Dizziness/Vertigo 18,013 

Respiratory Distress/Bronchospasm 16,702 

Chest Pain - Not Cardiac 15,691 

Alcohol Intoxication 15,398 

Overdose/Poisoning/Ingestion 15,049 

Not Recorded 14,911 

Stroke / CVA / TIA 14,619 

Cold/Flu Symptom 13,606 

Headache - Non-traumatic 9,733 

Cardiac Dysrhythmia 8,947 

Sepsis 7,332 

Fever 6,985 

Hypoglycemia 6,227 

Hypertension 5,937 

Respiratory Distress/Pulm Edema/CHF 5,727 

Genitourinary disorder, unspecified 5,158 

Cardiac Arrest -Non-traumatic 4,655 

*Data ran on 5/10/2023 
 

DISCUSSION 

 

None 

 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

 

None 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
11120 INTERNATIONAL DR.., 2ND FLOOR 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670  

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 
 

 

   

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

 

 

MEETING DATE: June 14, 2023 ITEM NUMBER: 6B 

 

SUBJECT: Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT) Report   

 

PRESENTER: Tom McGinnis 

 EMS Systems Division Chief 

 

CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ___  INFORMATION:  X  
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

No Action Recommended. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

No Fiscal Impact. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

With the passing of AB 2961(O’Donnell, Chapter 656) in 2018, Health and Safety 

Code 1797. 123 now requires that LEMSAs submit APOT reports quarterly to the 

EMS Authority effective July 1, 2019. Statute also required the EMS Authority to 

calculate APOT times provided by the LEMSAs and provide biannual reports to 

EMS Commission and a legislative report on or by December 1, 2020. This report 

is the first for the 2023 calendar year. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The included report to the EMS Commission covers one quarter of retrospective 

APOT information provided by all 34 LEMSAs for quarter 4 of 2022. As of January 

1, 2023, the EMS Authority no longer requires CEMSIS participating LEMSAs to 

submit quarterly APOT reports.  

 

 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 14, 202 

Item #6B 

Page 2 

 

   

 

 2023 EMSA APOT Reporting  

 

The EMS Authority is monitoring APOT using CEMSIS EMS data for 2023 for all 

participating LEMSAs. LEMSAs with limited CEMSIS participation are requested to 

provide the EMS Authority with quarterly reports until their CEMSIS participation is 

deemed sufficient to calculate APOT. 

 

In January 2023, CEMSIS was transitioned from a contract project through one of 

our local EMS agency partners to an internal state program at the EMS Authority. 

The transition of CEMSIS to the EMS Authority has been ongoing throughout the 

first quarter of 2023. During this time, the EMS Authority has monitored the system 

to ensure data flow continued without interruption. The transition process did 

require us to address various minor issues that were to be expected with this type 

of system change.  

 

The EMS Authority has been running monthly APOT reports sourced from CEMSIS 

for all participating LEMSA using the updated APOT specifications from Fall 2022.  

Following internal EMS Authority review, each LEMSA will receive an APOT report 

outlining their APOT representation in CEMSIS.  LEMSAs are encouraged to 

continue to monitor APOT locally and engage the EMS Authority if they identify 

any discrepancies in their CEMSIS representation. The EMS Authority will also 

update the APOT specification using the NEMSIS 3.5 data dictionary. The EMS 

Authority will continue to run monthly APOT reports using LEMSAs NEMSIS 3.4 and 

3.5 data (where available) for all of 2023. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

 

June 2023 Report to Commission: Ambulance Patient Offload Delays 



 

 
 
 
 

 
Report to Commission: Ambulance 
Patient Offload Delays 

 
 
 
 

Emergency Medical Services Authority 
California Health and Human Services Agency 
June 2023 
Elizabeth Basnett, Acting Director  

 

 

 



2 
 

Table of Contents 
Local EMS Agency 2022 Quarter Four (4) Ambulance Patient Offload Time 
(APOT) .......................................................................................................................... 04 

 Alameda County EMS Agency ...................................................................... 04 

 Central California EMS Agency ...................................................................... 06 

 Coastal Valleys EMS Agency .......................................................................... 07  

 Contra Costa County EMS Agency ............................................................... 08 

 El Dorado County EMS Agency ...................................................................... 09 

 Inland Counties Emergency Medical Agency ............................................. 09 

 Imperial County EMS Agency ......................................................................... 13  

 Kern County EMS Agency ............................................................................... 14 

 Los Angeles County EMS Agency .................................................................. 14 

 Marin County EMS Agency ............................................................................. 18 

Merced County EMS Agency ......................................................................... 18 

 Monterey County EMS Agency ...................................................................... 19 

 Mountain Valley EMS Agency ........................................................................ 19 

 Napa County EMS Agency ............................................................................. 20 

 North Coast EMS Agency ................................................................................ 20 

 Northern California EMS Agency .................................................................... 21 

 Orange County EMS Agency ......................................................................... 22 

 Riverside County EMS Agency ....................................................................... 23 

 Sacramento County EMS Agency ................................................................. 26 

 San Benito County EMS Agency .................................................................... 27 

 San Diego County EMS Agency ..................................................................... 27 

 San Francisco County EMS Agency ............................................................... 28 

 San Joaquin County EMS Agency ................................................................. 29 

 San Luis Obispo County EMS Agency ............................................................ 29 



3 
 

 San Mateo County EMS Agency ................................................................... 30 

 Santa Barbara County EMS Agency ............................................................. 31 

 Santa Clara County EMS Agency .................................................................. 31 

 Santa Cruz County EMS Agency .................................................................... 32 

 Sierra-Sacramento Valley EMS Agency ........................................................ 33 

Solano County EMS Agency ........................................................................... 34 

Stanislaus County EMS Agency ...................................................................... 35 

Tuolumne County EMS Agency ...................................................................... 36 

 Ventura County EMS Agency ......................................................................... 36 

 Yolo County EMS Agency ............................................................................... 37    



Alameda County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Alameda County Fairmont Hospital 2 0:10:51 1 0:22:31 1 0:19:45
Alameda County Medical Center, Highland 1170 0:51:52 1138 0:59:19 1206 1:05:26
Alameda Hospital 296 0:25:37 324 0:36:28 347 0:36:39
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Alta Bates Campus 375 0:47:02 365 0:46:49 385 0:44:46
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Hawthorne 8 0:47:46 14 1:06:18 11 0:43:45
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Herrick Campus 3 0:44:14 2 0:22:34 1 1:13:41
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Summit Campus 1098 0:48:17 1102 1:01:15 1202 1:01:12
CALIFORNIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER 1 0:11:49
Children's Hospital & Research Center Oakland 112 0:40:27 150 0:40:57 139 0:40:20
CPMC Davies Campus 1 0:45:00
Eden Medical Center 961 0:52:21 953 1:09:28 1042 1:18:44
El Camino Hospital 1 0:58:30
Fremont Hospital 2 0:43:31
Good Samaritan Hospital, San Jose 1 0:12:17
John George Psychiatric Pavilion 7 1:13:48 4 0:52:16 10 1:15:25
John Muir Medical Center, Concord 1 1:55:00
John Muir Medical Center, Walnut Creek 3 0:18:56 5 0:24:23
kaiser 1 0:25:00
Kaiser Modesto 1 0:26:18
Kaiser Permanente, Antioch 9 0:39:53 9 0:31:12 9 0:28:49
Kaiser Permanente, Fremont 453 0:42:55 506 0:53:08 562 0:56:50
Kaiser Permanente, Manteca 4 0:24:51 4 0:31:55
Kaiser Permanente, Oakland Medical Center 747 0:55:22 674 0:54:00 775 1:15:25
Kaiser Permanente, Redwood City 2 0:16:46
Kaiser Permanente, Richmond 10 0:35:02 10 0:39:34 5 0:31:08
Kaiser Permanente, San Leandro Medical Center 727 0:53:04 729 0:52:54 823 0:54:38
Kaiser Permanente, Santa Clara Medical Center and Medical Offices 2 0:36:06
Kaiser Permanente, Walnut Creek 215 0:31:26 241 0:35:38 236 0:39:10
KAISER-FREMONT 1 0:23:35
Mills-Peninsula 1 1:00:38
Palo Alto VA Medical Center 1 0:17:26
Regional Medical Center of San Jose 30 0:19:30 16 0:24:13 25 0:29:53
Saint Francis Memorial Hospital 3 0:28:42 1 0:02:00
Saint Rose Hospital 430 0:59:11 359 1:01:45 361 0:48:48
San Joaquin General Hospital 2 0:19:22 3 0:47:24 1 0:13:28
San Leandro Hospital 467 0:59:54 463 0:59:59 549 1:04:04
San Ramon Regional Medical Center 31 0:19:37 45 1:15:53 51 0:44:05
Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 3 0:14:48 2 0:32:21 2 0:02:54
Stanford Health Care 3 0:12:19 8 0:16:42 9 0:24:56
Stanford Health Care - ValleyCare 628 0:40:15 658 0:44:38 677 0:47:52
Sutter Delta Medical Center 1 0:23:29
Sutter Tracy Community Hospital 1 0:11:01 6 0:46:19 5 0:27:57
UCSF Benioff Children's Hospital 1 0:03:05
UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 1 0:15:34 2 0:42:31
Veterans Administration Medical Center, San Francisco 1 0:02:00
Washington Hospital, Fremont 898 0:38:30 989 0:46:11 1082 0:57:27

Local EMS Agency 2022 Quarter Four (4) Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT)

Alameda County EMS Agency

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

4



Alameda County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Alameda County Fairmont Hospital 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Alameda County Medical Center, Highland 505 578 69 16 2 473 556 91 12 6 476 587 115 24 5
Alameda Hospital 250 45 0 0 1 248 62 12 2 0 271 61 12 2 1
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Alta Bates Campus 178 176 21 0 0 180 167 17 0 1 180 191 14 0 0
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Hawthorne 5 3 0 0 0 3 9 2 0 0 3 8 0 0 0
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Herrick Campus 0 3 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, Summit Campus 501 544 49 4 1 408 576 102 12 4 394 681 119 5 4
CALIFORNIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Children's Hospital & Research Center Oakland 68 41 3 0 0 92 52 6 0 0 85 52 2 0 0
CPMC Davies Campus 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Eden Medical Center 487 409 63 3 0 445 395 92 20 2 407 461 138 31 5
El Camino Hospital 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fremont Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Good Samaritan Hospital, San Jose 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
John George Psychiatric Pavilion 1 5 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 3 3 3 1 0
John Muir Medical Center, Concord 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
John Muir Medical Center, Walnut Creek 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 0
kaiser 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Modesto 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Antioch 5 3 1 0 0 2 7 0 0 0 2 7 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Fremont 255 182 15 1 0 261 206 36 3 0 270 241 50 1 0
Kaiser Permanente, Manteca 3 1 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Oakland Medical Center 330 355 58 4 0 263 360 43 8 0 256 401 107 9 2
Kaiser Permanente, Redwood City 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Richmond 7 3 0 0 0 6 3 1 0 0 3 2 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, San Leandro Medical Center 240 437 50 0 0 252 428 42 5 2 274 481 62 6 0
Kaiser Permanente, Santa Clara Medical Center and Medical Offices 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Walnut Creek 142 70 3 0 0 118 120 3 0 0 111 121 2 2 0
KAISER-FREMONT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Mills-Peninsula 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Palo Alto VA Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Regional Medical Center of San Jose 28 2 0 0 0 14 2 0 0 0 19 5 1 0 0
Saint Francis Memorial Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Saint Rose Hospital 191 197 34 7 1 160 158 39 2 0 168 171 19 3 0
San Joaquin General Hospital 2 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
San Leandro Hospital 155 266 44 2 0 174 242 44 3 0 166 321 53 8 1
San Ramon Regional Medical Center 28 3 0 0 0 22 14 9 0 0 28 21 2 0 0
Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 3 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Stanford Health Care 3 0 0 0 0 7 1 0 0 0 6 3 0 0 0
Stanford Health Care - ValleyCare 382 225 20 1 0 360 266 27 5 0 356 272 44 4 1
Sutter Delta Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sutter Tracy Community Hospital 1 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 0 0 3 2 0 0 0
UCSF Benioff Children's Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Veterans Administration Medical Center, San Francisco 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Washington Hospital, Fremont 517 358 22 1 0 471 472 39 6 1 473 512 78 14 5

December 2022October 2022 November 2022

5



Central California EMS Agency

Central California EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health Bakersfield 122 0:53:46 59 1:24:03 68 1:05:22
Adventist Medical Center - Hanford 817 0:35:23 807 0:43:27 858 0:42:37
Adventist Medical Center - Reedley 118 0:31:16 128 0:29:36 130 0:24:36
Adventist Medical Center - Selma 203 0:21:35 259 0:24:48 237 0:26:14
Adventist Medical Center - Tulare 33 0:43:36 33 0:53:21 38 1:04:59
Bakersfield Heart Hospital 5 0:22:55
Bakersfield Memorial Hospital 47 0:39:04 1 0:20:19
Clovis Community Hospital 1683 0:35:03 1780 0:26:21 1706 0:41:12
Coalinga Hospital 69 0:27:00 82 0:31:51 66 0:35:08
Community Regional Medical Center 3965 0:35:03 3574 0:40:40 3498 0:45:03
Delano Regional Medical Center 5 0:20:08 1 0:41:32 4 0:16:46
John C Fremont Healthcare District 10 0:10:06 13 0:27:30 9 0:25:39
Kaiser Hospital - Fresno 806 0:28:34 867 0:28:20 880 0:32:12
Kaweah Delta Medical Center 1556 0:38:28 1559 0:43:51 1547 0:45:23
Kern Medical 61 1:04:05
Madera Community Hospital 471 0:18:30 448 0:13:49 359 0:13:38
Memorial Hospital Los Banos 1 0:17:15 4 0:12:36 3 0:21:09
Memorial Medical Center, Modesto 1 0:08:49
Mercy Hospital SW - Bakersfield 21 0:39:50 1 0:35:54 1 0:49:33
Mercy Medical Center, Merced 33 0:39:54 26 0:36:35 38 0:38:48
Saint Agnes Medical Center 2220 0:47:17 2209 0:52:05 2081 1:02:35
Sierra View District Hospital 519 0:30:21 556 0:33:47 600 0:34:09
Truxton Surgery Ctr -Bkfd 15 0:37:58 0 0
Valley Childrens Hospital 346 0:46:30 420 0:48:40 371 0:48:06

Veterans Administration Medical Center 131 0:42:20 224 0:42:26 209 0:46:02

Central California EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health Bakersfield 29 81 10 1 1 11 35 9 3 1 18 42 7 1 0
Adventist Medical Center - Hanford 551 258 8 0 0 475 293 38 1 0 520 304 34 0 0
Adventist Medical Center - Reedley 92 25 1 0 0 97 31 0 0 0 109 21 0 0 0
Adventist Medical Center - Selma 178 25 0 0 0 210 49 0 0 0 200 35 2 0 0
Adventist Medical Center - Tulare 21 11 1 0 0 22 9 2 0 0 21 16 1 0 0
Bakersfield Heart Hospital 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bakersfield Memorial Hospital 21 24 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Clovis Community Hospital 827 834 22 0 0 782 935 63 0 0 718 936 51 1 0
Coalinga Hospital 63 6 0 0 0 80 2 0 0 0 64 1 1 0 0
Community Regional Medical Center 1909 1932 123 1 0 1721 1751 97 4 1 1559 1789 135 9 6
Delano Regional Medical Center 4 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0
John C Fremont Healthcare District 10 0 0 0 0 10 3 0 0 0 4 5 0 0 0
Kaiser Hospital - Fresno 545 243 17 1 0 503 334 27 3 0 475 368 34 3 0
Kaweah Delta Medical Center 642 851 62 0 1 616 847 94 2 0 514 855 171 6 1
Kern Medical 21 32 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Madera Community Hospital 334 132 5 0 0 312 124 11 1 0 238 115 6 0 0
Memorial Hospital Los Banos 1 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0
Memorial Medical Center, Modesto 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mercy Hospital SW - Bakersfield 7 14 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Mercy Medical Center, Merced 17 16 0 0 0 15 11 0 0 0 16 22 0 0 0
Saint Agnes Medical Center 821 1333 66 0 0 734 1380 94 1 0 723 1280 77 1 0
Sierra View District Hospital 274 231 14 0 0 264 251 35 6 0 260 268 63 8 1
Truxton Surgery Ctr -Bkfd 7 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Valley Childrens Hospital 261 83 2 0 0 322 92 6 0 0 283 83 5 0 0
Veterans Administration Medical Center 91 39 1 0 0 146 73 5 0 0 140 66 3 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

6



Coastal Valleys EMS Agency

Coastal Valleys EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

ADVENTIST HEALTH HOWARD MEMORIAL 91 0:06:00 122 0:06:00 110 0:06:00
ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST 124 0:05:00 105 0:07:00 132 0:06:00
ADVENTIST HEALTH ST. HELENA 1 0:15:00 1 0:17:00
ADVENTIST HEALTH UKIAH VALLEY 298 0:07:00 301 0:06:23 282 0:07:00
ADVENTIST HEALTH VALLEJO 1 0:04:00
HEALDSBURG DISTRICT HOSPITAL 83 0:07:20 73 0:10:16 95 0:09:21
JOHN MUIR MEDICAL CENTER, WA 1 0:06:00
KAISER PERMANENTE, SAN RAFAEL 23 0:10:19 24 0:11:44 19 0:32:57
KAISER PERMANENTE, SANTA ROSA 718 0:17:22 793 0:22:48 775 0:20:15
KAISER PERMANENTE, VALLEJO 3 0:10:39
NOVATO COMMUNITY HOSPITAL 3 0:04:21 1 0:07:41 1 0:01:02
PETALUMA VALLEY HOSPITAL 330 0:14:50 413 0:19:10 386 0:14:34
QUEEN OF THE VALLEY MEDICAL 25 0:15:00 21 0:09:31 17 0:12:45
REDWOOD COAST MEDICAL SERVICES 1 0:02:00
SANTA ROSA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 1197 0:24:58 1221 0:27:50 1,290 0:31:09
SONOMA SPECIALTY HOSPITAL 1 0:27:57
SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL 180 0:07:28 178 0:11:00 178 0:11:34
SUTTER SANTA ROSA REGIONAL HOSPITAL 646 0:44:00 667 1:00:31 608 0:46:35
UC DAVIS MEDICAL CENTER 1 0:10:00

Coastal Valleys EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

ADVENTIST HEALTH HOWARD MEMORIAL 90 0 1 0 0 122 0 0 0 0 110 0 0 0 0
ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST 124 0 0 0 0 105 0 0 0 0 132 0 0 0 0
ADVENTIST HEALTH ST. HELENA 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
ADVENTIST HEALTH UKIAH VALLEY 297 1 0 0 0 301 0 0 0 0 282 0 0 0 0
ADVENTIST HEALTH VALLEJO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
HEALDSBURG DISTRICT HOSPITAL 82 1 0 0 0 73 0 0 0 0 95 0 0 0 0
JOHN MUIR MEDICAL CENTER, WA 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
KAISER PERMANENTE, SAN RAFAEL 23 0 0 0 0 24 0 0 0 0 17 2 0 0 0
KAISER PERMANENTE, SANTA ROSA 675 35 3 5 0 702 81 6 4 0 700 63 12 0 0
KAISER PERMANENTE, VALLEJO 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NOVATO COMMUNITY HOSPITAL 3 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
PETALUMA VALLEY HOSPITAL 307 17 4 2 0 375 30 4 3 1 363 20 0 3 0
QUEEN OF THE VALLEY MEDICAL 25 0 0 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 0 0
REDWOOD COAST MEDICAL SERVICES 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SANTA ROSA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 1033 148 13 2 1 1027 171 11 10 2 1065 184 25 16 0
SONOMA SPECIALTY HOSPITAL 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL 179 1 0 0 0 172 5 1 0 0 173 5 0 0 0
SUTTER SANTA ROSA REGIONAL HOSPITAL 421 198 16 9 2 364 238 36 19 10 392 179 19 14 4
UC DAVIS MEDICAL CENTER 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

7



Contra Costa County EMS Agency

Contra Costa County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Alameda County Medical Center 17 1:23:18 15 1:12:17 6 2:33:51
Alta Bates 179 0:58:27 189 0:55:08 156 0:54:35
Childrens Oakland 56 0:48:29 47 0:41:34 53 0:33:52
Contra Costa County Psychiatric Emergency 366 2:14:36 345 1:55:35 339 1:49:56
Contra Costa Regional 357 1:27:27 410 1:08:35 405 1:20:22
Eden 6 0:16:50 2 0:49:04 6 0:23:40
John Muir - Concord 1049 0:36:26 1079 0:40:59 1,171 1:00:15
John Muir - Walnut Creek 1217 0:38:34 1156 0:44:24 1,274 0:44:36
Kaiser Antioch 826 0:37:48 932 0:46:57 883 0:56:06
Kaiser Oakland 82 1:11:50 79 1:06:23 83 1:29:55
Kaiser Richmond 1062 0:51:26 1097 0:52:22 1,134 1:01:23
Kaiser Vallejo 78 0:38:58 97 0:37:36 96 0:47:42
Kaiser Walnut Creek 815 0:36:31 820 0:39:31 1,003 0:39:45
Marin General 2 0:35:25 4 1:17:46 2 0:19:08
Other - Out of County 39 0:41:23 42 0:50:07 29 0:45:59
San Ramon Regional 154 0:16:49 158 0:17:50 189 0:19:29
Summit 48 1:02:04 54 1:15:49 54 1:10:06
Sutter Delta 892 0:56:29 957 1:21:14 978 1:35:11
Sutter Solano 13 0:30:51 13 0:29:54 5 0:39:57

Valley Care 10 0:26:25 14 0:28:41 9 0:52:10

Contra Costa County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Alameda County Medical Center 7 4 6 0 0 6 7 1 1 0 4 0 1 0 1
Alta Bates 41 121 16 1 0 33 138 16 1 1 21 125 9 1 0
Childrens Oakland 26 29 1 0 0 29 18 0 0 0 29 24 0 0 0
Contra Costa County Psychiatric Emergency 53 160 102 32 19 59 175 78 22 11 48 163 105 15 8
Contra Costa Regional 115 173 53 13 3 165 197 38 5 5 132 210 42 13 8
Eden 6 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 4 2 0 0 0
John Muir - Concord 631 395 19 3 1 612 417 44 6 0 579 473 105 9 5
John Muir - Walnut Creek 701 494 21 1 0 616 489 40 10 1 657 554 56 6 1
Kaiser Antioch 341 480 5 0 0 330 566 34 2 0 214 594 71 3 1
Kaiser Oakland 12 55 14 1 0 19 48 11 1 0 6 47 28 1 1
Kaiser Richmond 356 628 59 11 8 369 648 63 17 0 294 721 94 20 5
Kaiser Vallejo 36 41 1 0 0 44 53 0 0 0 35 56 5 0 0
Kaiser Walnut Creek 399 408 8 0 0 400 408 12 0 0 396 590 15 2 0
Marin General 1 1 0 0 0 2 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0
Other - Out of County 23 14 2 0 0 23 17 1 1 0 11 16 1 1 0
San Ramon Regional 145 9 0 0 0 145 11 2 0 0 170 17 2 0 0
Summit 10 33 5 0 0 10 37 5 2 0 11 33 10 0 0
Sutter Delta 333 482 71 6 0 266 507 154 24 6 253 466 209 42 8
Sutter Solano 9 4 0 0 0 6 7 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0
Valley Care 8 2 0 0 0 11 3 0 0 0 5 3 1 0 0

October 2022 November 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

December 2022

8



El Dorado County EMS Agency

El Dorado County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Barton Memorial Hospital 164 0:08:23 159 0:07:00 210 0:08:44
Kaiser Permanente, Roseville Medical Center 27 1:22:08 31 0:56:49 28 0:51:41
Marshall Medical Center 622 0:07:50 662 0:09:41 664 0:10:04
Mercy General Hospital 1 0:28:18 1 1:10:58
Mercy Hospital of Folsom 191 0:22:27 229 0:34:47 235 0:32:49
Mercy San Juan Medical Center 1 1:00:08 0 1 0:43:22
Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital 17 0:12:20 19 0:15:02 27 0:14:44
Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 0 3 2:49:05
Sutter Roseville Medical Center 16 0:22:29 16 0:15:59 15 0:14:10
Tahoe Forest Hospital 5 0:05:46 1 0:02:00 5 0:04:57
UC Davis Medical Center 28 0:25:52 17 0:30:12 17 0:42:15
Sacramento VA Medical Center 1 0:03:49 0 0
Renown Regional Medical Center 3 0:11:06 1 0:03:00 3 0:18:42
Carson Tahoe Regional Medical Center 1 0:13:51 0

El Dorado County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Barton Memorial Hospital 164 0 0 0 0 158 1 0 0 0 207 3 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Roseville Medical Center 13 9 5 0 0 13 15 2 1 0 11 14 2 1 0
Marshall Medical Center 620 2 0 0 0 650 12 0 0 0 651 12 1 0 0
Mercy General Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
Mercy Hospital of Folsom 165 25 1 0 0 174 45 8 1 1 179 48 7 0 1
Mercy San Juan Medical Center 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital 16 1 0 0 0 17 2 0 0 0 27 0 0 0 0
Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1
Sutter Roseville Medical Center 12 4 0 0 0 15 1 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0
Tahoe Forest Hospital 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0
UC Davis Medical Center 21 6 1 0 0 14 3 0 0 0 11 5 0 0 1
Sacramento VA Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Renown Regional Medical Center 3 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0
Carson Tahoe Regional Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Inland Counties Emergency Medical Agency

Inland Counties Emergency Medical Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health Hanford 1 0:15:00
Antelope Valley Hospital 8 0:11:12 2 0:07:00 5 0:09:00
Arrowhead Regional Medical Center 1030 0:35:06 1057 0:35:06 979 0:42:34
Barstow Community Hospital 387 0:14:03 428 0:15:55 425 0:17:13
Bear Valley Community Healthcare District 134 0:14:26 149 0:16:02 270 0:20:05
Big Bear Airport 2 0:18:36
Canyon Ridge Hospital 2 0:28:21 1 0:08:56
Carson Tahoe Regional Medical Center 2 0:13:09 3 0:12:57
Carson Valley Medical Center 8 0:08:40 9 0:05:57 9 0:08:48
Casa Colina Hospital 6 0:52:56 3 0:43:04
Cedars-Sinai Medical Center 1 0:09:10
Children's Hospital of Orange County 2 0:16:48 4 0:18:24 3 0:25:01
Chino Valley Medical Center 323 0:42:08 331 0:43:53 361 0:48:47

November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

9



Inland Counties Emergency Medical Agency APOT -1 Cont..

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

City of Hope Helford Clinical Research Hospital 1 0:11:39
Colorado River Medical Center 59 0:03:53 51 0:04:00 69 0:03:54
Community Extended Care Hospital Of Montclair 1 0:25:27
Community Hospital of San Bernardino 488 0:46:31 485 0:57:22 520 0:57:32
Community Regional Medical Center, Fresno 4 0:21:00 1 0:07:00 1 0:10:00
Corona Regional Medical Center 1 0:11:26 1 0:56:36
Desert Regional Medical Center 64 0:19:46 46 0:17:31 63 0:26:05
Desert Valley Hospital 844 0:56:31 878 1:08:09 857 1:11:28
Desert View Hospital 2 0:11:44 2 0:11:35 3 0:38:20
Eisenhower Medical Center 2 0:19:10
Good Samaritan Hospital, San Jose 1 0:18:00
Henderson Hospital 2 0:13:49
Hi Desert Airport - Joshua Tree 3 1:26:43
Hi-Desert Medical Center 439 0:19:13 476 0:20:49 541 0:36:51
Inland Valley Care And Rehabilitation Center 1 0:15:45
JFK - John F Kennedy Memorial Hospital 1 0:07:00
Kaiser Access Ctr - Riv 1 0:12:20
Kaiser Chemical Clnc - Font 1 0:16:12
Kaiser Clnc Ontario 1 0:27:30
Kaiser Permanente, Anaheim 1 0:08:32 1 0:09:07
Kaiser Permanente, Baldwin Park 1 0:12:40 2 1:38:14
Kaiser Permanente, Downey 1 0:11:11 1 0:16:52
Kaiser Permanente, Fontana 1204 0:43:18 1246 0:47:47 1219 0:53:14
Kaiser Permanente, Los Angeles 1 0:10:48 2 0:16:54 4 0:22:48
Kaiser Permanente, Moreno Valley 14 1:18:19 13 0:42:53 20 1:08:48
Kaiser Permanente, Ontario 696 0:44:45 751 0:50:15 766 1:11:31
Kaiser Permanente, Riverside 2 0:34:19 2 1:27:38 4 0:20:01
Kaweah Delta Medical Center 1 0:12:00
Keck Hospital of USC 1 0:49:38 2 0:39:06
Kindred Hospital, Ontario 1 0:15:08 1 0:16:46
Loma Linda Dialysis Ctr 1 0:29:43
Loma Linda University Behavioral Medicine Center 2 0:10:14
Loma Linda University Children's Hospital 170 0:52:29 159 0:58:00 143 0:44:00
Loma Linda University Medical Center 1272 0:54:43 1273 0:50:02 1291 1:01:26
Loma Linda University Medical Center, East Campus Hospital 1 0:30:21 1 0:07:52
Loma Linda VA Clnc - Pdst 4 0:21:16 5 0:36:03 5 0:39:48
Mammoth Hospital 46 0:09:53 56 0:14:29 88 0:14:23
Montclair Hospital Medical Center 190 0:27:07 255 0:29:50 257 0:30:29
Mountains Community Hospital 68 0:11:47 73 0:21:25 82 0:18:06
Mountainview Hospital 1 0:02:00
Northern Inyo Hospital 63 0:07:11 108 0:11:28 86 0:09:11
Other Facility (Out Of County) 4 0:33:13 5 1:03:48 6 0:47:41
Other Not Listed 6 0:14:15 3 0:13:24 2 0:17:36
Parkview Community Hospital Medical Center 1 0:20:00 1 0:23:16
Placentia-Linda Hospital 2 0:20:42
Pomona Valley Health Centers 1 0:27:06 1 0:28:46
Pomona Valley Hospital Medical Center 307 0:59:50 305 1:09:26 368 1:26:19
Providence Saint Joseph Medical Center 4 0:56:23 1 0:45:43
Rancho San Antonio Medical Center 1 0:44:05 2 0:18:07
Redlands Community Hospital 762 0:43:35 863 0:59:38 836 1:23:40
Redlands Healthcare Center 1 0:42:51
Renown Regional Medical Center 1 0:06:28
Ridgecrest Regional Hospital 2 0:05:02 1 0:10:32
Riverside Community Hospital 32 0:56:56 24 0:41:13 21 1:03:30
Riverside County Regional Medical Center Public Health 1 0:26:25 1 0:11:54 1 0:48:20
Riverside Medical Clinic - Moreno Valley 1 0:15:15 1 0:29:57

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

10



Inland Counties Emergency Medical Agency APOT -1 Cont..

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Riverside University Health System Medical Center 19 0:29:24 21 0:35:56 17 0:41:30
Robert E Bush Naval Hospital 22 0:11:02 26 0:08:50 16 0:07:09
Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 2 0:09:18
San Antonio Regional Hospital 1623 0:43:07 1694 0:48:09 1724 0:55:23
San Bernardino Med Grp 1 0:48:51
San Gorgonio Memorial Hospital 14 0:31:48 15 1:26:31 13 1:16:02
Sierra San Antonio Medical 1 0:22:44
Southern Hills Hospital & Medical Center 1 0:04:00
Southern Inyo Hospital 10 0:03:09 10 0:03:35 3 0:05:00
St Bernadines Med 399 - Sbdo 15 0:41:48 33 0:38:06 19 0:34:07
St Bernadines Med 401 - Sbdo 1 0:44:16 1 1:22:08 2 0:51:45
St Johns Hlth Care & Hos - Smca 1 0:10:00
St Rose Hospital - Siena 9 0:15:59 6 0:29:59 5 0:23:18
St. Bernardine Medical Center 1262 0:46:49 1249 0:38:35 1252 0:56:49
St. Jude Medical Center 4 0:37:11 2 0:29:17 2 0:17:28
St. Mary Medical Center 1140 1:01:12 1185 0:59:14 1218 1:05:24
St. Mary Medical Center, Long Beach 1 0:12:00
Summerlin Hospital Medical Center 1 0:06:00
Sunrise Hospital & Medical Center 2 0:19:18 3 0:17:36 5 0:14:24
Totally Kids Rehabilitation Hospital 1 0:10:41
UMC Medical 2 0:14:21 1 0:14:46
UMC Trauma 4 0:14:05 1 0:05:53 2 0:07:14
University of California, Irvine Medical Center 1 0:34:00 1 1:29:59
Valley View Medical Center 7 0:02:49 8 0:04:31 1 0:03:47
Veterans Administration Loma Linda Healthcare System 93 0:28:06 85 0:27:48 88 0:31:16
Victor Valley Global Medical Center 717 0:45:12 785 0:51:24 752 1:00:54
Weed Army Community Hospital (Wach), Ft Irwin 9 0:05:43 5 0:04:11 2 0:03:12
West Hills Hospital and Medical Center 1 0:07:00

Inland Counties Emergency Medical Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health Hanford 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Antelope Valley Hospital 8 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0
Arrowhead Regional Medical Center 775 231 21 3 0 806 221 27 3 0 699 234 40 6 0
Barstow Community Hospital 368 19 0 0 0 405 23 0 0 0 400 24 1 0 0
Bear Valley Community Healthcare District 130 4 0 0 0 142 6 1 0 0 241 26 3 0 0
Big Bear Airport 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Canyon Ridge Hospital 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Carson Tahoe Regional Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0
Carson Valley Medical Center 8 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 8 1 0 0 0
Casa Colina Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 3 2 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 0
Cedars-Sinai Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Children's Hospital of Orange County 2 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0
Chino Valley Medical Center 194 120 9 0 0 208 106 16 1 0 193 150 17 1 0
City of Hope Helford Clinical Research Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Colorado River Medical Center 59 0 0 0 0 51 0 0 0 0 69 0 0 0 0
Community Extended Care Hospital Of Montclair 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Community Hospital of San Bernardino 198 268 21 1 0 150 292 40 3 0 182 290 43 4 1
Community Regional Medical Center, Fresno 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Corona Regional Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Desert Regional Medical Center 57 5 2 0 0 43 3 0 0 0 54 7 2 0 0
Desert Valley Hospital 247 527 61 9 0 181 561 128 8 0 205 510 134 8 0
Desert View Hospital 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0
Eisenhower Medical Center 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Good Samaritan Hospital, San Jose 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

11



Inland Counties Emergency Medical Agency APOT - 2 Cont..
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Henderson Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Hi Desert Airport - Joshua Tree 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0
Hi-Desert Medical Center 402 37 0 0 0 423 48 5 0 0 413 106 17 4 1
Inland Valley Care And Rehabilitation Center 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
JFK - John F Kennedy Memorial Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Access Ctr - Riv 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Chemical Clnc - Font 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Clnc Ontario 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Anaheim 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Baldwin Park 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Downey 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Fontana 601 552 44 7 0 622 550 65 7 2 585 546 81 6 1
Kaiser Permanente, Los Angeles 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Moreno Valley 5 7 1 1 0 5 8 0 0 0 12 5 3 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Ontario 312 356 26 1 1 323 383 43 2 0 278 377 97 14 0
Kaiser Permanente, Riverside 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 3 1 0 0 0
Kaweah Delta Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Keck Hospital of USC 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kindred Hospital, Ontario 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loma Linda Dialysis Ctr 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loma Linda University Behavioral Medicine Center 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loma Linda University Children's Hospital 96 65 9 0 0 71 73 14 1 0 88 50 5 0 0
Loma Linda University Medical Center 449 735 84 4 0 457 748 67 1 0 457 694 129 10 1
Loma Linda University Medical Center, East Campus Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Loma Linda VA Clnc - Pdst 3 1 0 0 0 1 4 0 0 0 3 2 0 0 0
Mammoth Hospital 46 0 0 0 0 55 1 0 0 0 83 5 0 0 0
Montclair Hospital Medical Center 144 45 1 0 0 191 62 2 0 0 193 61 3 0 0
Mountains Community Hospital 67 1 0 0 0 65 8 0 0 0 75 7 0 0 0
Mountainview Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Northern Inyo Hospital 62 1 0 0 0 107 1 0 0 0 86 0 0 0 0
Other Facility (Out Of County) 1 3 0 0 0 4 0 1 0 0 3 2 1 0 0
Other Not Listed 5 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Parkview Community Hospital Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Placentia-Linda Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pomona Valley Health Centers 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Pomona Valley Hospital Medical Center 143 133 25 4 2 121 141 37 3 3 145 156 50 12 5
Providence Saint Joseph Medical Center 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Rancho San Antonio Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Redlands Community Hospital 379 349 33 1 0 342 435 68 13 5 227 420 166 19 4
Redlands Healthcare Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Renown Regional Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Ridgecrest Regional Hospital 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Riverside Community Hospital 11 18 3 0 0 10 14 0 0 0 11 7 3 0 0
Riverside County Regional Medical Center Public Health 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Riverside Medical Clinic - Moreno Valley 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Riverside University Health System Medical Center 14 5 0 0 0 12 9 0 0 0 9 8 0 0 0
Robert E Bush Naval Hospital 22 0 0 0 0 26 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 0
Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
San Antonio Regional Hospital 745 822 53 3 0 839 760 78 14 3 759 834 117 12 2
San Bernardino Med Grp 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
San Gorgonio Memorial Hospital 8 6 0 0 0 5 8 1 1 0 4 5 4 0 0
Sierra San Antonio Medical 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Southern Hills Hospital & Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Southern Inyo Hospital 10 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0
St Bernadines Med 399 - Sbdo 7 7 1 0 0 18 14 1 0 0 11 7 1 0 0
St Bernadines Med 401 - Sbdo 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0
St Johns Hlth Care & Hos - Smca 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

12



Inland Counties Emergency Medical Agency APOT - 2 Cont..
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

St Rose Hospital - Siena 9 0 0 0 0 4 2 0 0 0 3 2 0 0 0
St. Bernardine Medical Center 590 611 59 2 0 741 480 26 2 0 532 605 102 12 1
St. Jude Medical Center 2 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
St. Mary Medical Center 264 756 116 4 0 217 851 114 2 1 189 860 154 15 0
St. Mary Medical Center, Long Beach 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Summerlin Hospital Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sunrise Hospital & Medical Center 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0
Totally Kids Rehabilitation Hospital 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UMC Medical 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UMC Trauma 4 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
University of California, Irvine Medical Center 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
Valley View Medical Center 7 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Veterans Administration Loma Linda Healthcare System 66 27 0 0 0 65 20 0 0 0 60 26 2 0 0
Victor Valley Global Medical Center 277 414 25 1 0 280 455 47 3 0 227 445 79 1 0
Weed Army Community Hospital (Wach), Ft Irwin 9 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
West Hills Hospital and Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

Imperial County EMS Agency

Imperial County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

El Centro Regional Medical Center 498 0:36:00 497 0:36:00 479 0:33:00
Pioneers Memorial Healthcare District 302 0:20:00 366 0:34:00 308 0:24:00
University of California, San Diego, John M. & Sally B. Thornton Hospital 3 0:20:00 10 0:21:00 13 0:51:00
Nelson/Hahn Pavilion - Rady Children's Hospital-San Diego 8 0:23:00 15 0:24:00 16 0:24:00
Alvarado Hospital 1 0:14:00 1 0:56:00 0 0:00:00
Alvarado Parkway Institute 1 0:39:00 0 0:00:00 0 0:00:00
Canyon Ridge Hospital 2 0:26:00 1 0:29:00 1 0:01:00
John F Kennedy Memorial Hospital 5 0:15:00 6 0:11:00 6 0:11:00
Desert Regional Medical Center 19 0:33:00 13 0:22:00 11 0:56:00
Scripps Memorial Hospital, La Jolla 12 0:31:00 4 0:30:00 4 0:29:00
Scripps Mercy Hospital 22 0:19:00 19 0:19:00 10 0:24:00
University of California, San Diego Medical Center 23 0:25:00 34 0:24:00 23 0:43:00

Imperial County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

El Centro Regional Medical Center 375 116 6 0 1 370 107 14 5 1 354 105 15 4 1
Pioneers Memorial Healthcare District 270 31 1 0 0 301 46 16 3 0 257 48 3 0 0
University of California, San Diego, John M. & Sally B. Thornton Hospital 2 1 0 0 0 9 0 1 0 0 9 3 1 0 0
Nelson/Hahn Pavilion - Rady Children's Hospital-San Diego 7 1 0 0 0 13 2 0 0 0 13 3 0 0 0
Alvarado Hospital 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Alvarado Parkway Institute 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Canyon Ridge Hospital 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
John F Kennedy Memorial Hospital 5 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0
Desert Regional Medical Center 16 2 1 0 0 10 3 0 0 0 6 4 1 0 0
Scripps Memorial Hospital, La Jolla 10 2 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0
Scripps Mercy Hospital 20 2 0 0 0 17 2 0 0 0 8 2 0 0 0
University of California, San Diego Medical Center 19 4 0 0 0 27 7 0 0 0 17 5 1 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

13



Kern County EMS Agency

Kern County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health Bakersfield 1297 1:09:00 1353 1:10:00 1332 1:05:00
Adventist Health Delano 177 0:37:00 204 0:36:00 126 0:40:00
Adventist Health Tehachapi 215 0:40:00 243 0:51:00 262 1:06:00
Antelope Valley Hospital 163 1:59:00 173 1:43:00 116 2:05:00
Bakersfield Heart Hospital 112 0:38:00 144 0:55:00 145 0:46:00
Bakersfield Memorial Hospital 1212 0:54:00 1341 0:59:00 1438 1:03:00
Henry Mayo Hospital 34 0:56:00 35 1:00:00 44 0:34:00
Kern Medical 925 1:08:00 931 1:09:00 954 1:15:00
Kern Valley Hospital 136 0:40:00 155 0:35:00 157 0:36:00
Mercy Downtown 385 0:53:00 484 1:03:00 429 1:12:00
Mercy Southwest 431 0:54:00 512 1:13:00 504 1:05:00
Palmdale Regional Medical Center 9 0:53:00 10 1:17:00 11 0:21:00
Ridgecrest Regional 244 0:29:00 268 0:46:00 256 0:38:00

Kern County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health Bakersfield 141 964 158 30 4 167 976 178 22 10 233 943 129 24 3
Adventist Health Delano 81 94 1 1 0 106 94 4 0 0 62 60 4 0 0
Adventist Health Tehachapi 113 97 4 1 0 111 120 9 2 1 114 116 25 5 2
Antelope Valley Hospital 31 86 29 10 7 53 83 21 8 8 37 56 10 6 7
Bakersfield Heart Hospital 39 70 3 0 0 31 101 11 1 0 49 90 6 0 0
Bakersfield Memorial Hospital 325 796 83 8 0 392 829 104 7 9 406 868 139 20 5
Henry Mayo Hospital 14 18 0 1 1 13 19 3 0 0 25 19 0 0 0
Kern Medical 182 609 122 10 2 196 606 122 7 0 202 596 144 9 3
Kern Valley Hospital 98 29 8 1 0 111 42 1 1 0 110 41 4 2 0
Mercy Downtown 111 247 26 1 0 111 316 50 5 2 87 276 57 8 1
Mercy Southwest 120 281 29 1 0 100 321 86 5 0 118 321 62 3 0
Palmdale Regional Medical Center 5 3 1 0 0 3 5 1 1 0 9 2 0 0 0
Ridgecrest Regional 186 53 5 0 0 193 57 15 2 1 188 58 7 1 2

Los Angeles County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health--Glendale 754 0:56:00 723 1:01:48 704 0:59:24
Adventist Health--White Memorial 306 0:42:00 371 0:49:00 359 0:46:12
Alhambra Hospital Medical Center 323 0:23:00 346 0:30:30 403 0:33:00
Antelope Valley Hospital 1,411 0:47:00 1,437 0:50:24 1,225 1:00:36
Beverly Hospital 576 0:35:00 588 0:38:00 555 0:50:36
Catalina Island Medical Center 31 0:10:00 20 0:14:12 19 0:08:24
Cedars-Sinai Marina Del Rey Hospital 565 0:46:00 589 0:48:00 617 0:45:00
Cedars Sinai Medical Center 1,252 0:47:00 1,211 0:56:00 1,339 0:49:00
Centinela Hospital Medical Center 1,388 1:05:00 1,477 1:18:00 1,257 1:27:00
Children's Hospital Los Angeles 89 0:18:00 90 0:16:00 115 0:14:36
Coast Plaza Hospital 364 1:17:24 363 1:39:12 326 1:55:30
College Medical Center 331 0:58:00 379 0:57:12 403 0:53:36
Community Hospital of Huntington Park 525 1:31:36 550 1:34:06 531 2:05:00
Diginity Health--California Hospital Medical Center 540 1:01:06 493 1:05:00 488 1:18:36

October 2022 November 2022

Los Angeles County EMS Agency

December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

14



Los Angeles County EMS Agency APOT -1 Cont...

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Diginity Health--Glendale Memorial Hospital Medical Center 555 0:33:00 605 0:53:00 633 0:45:48
Diginity Health--Northridge Hospital Medical Center 1,008 0:32:00 1,161 0:47:00 1,182 0:42:54
Diginity Health--St. Mary Medical Center 787 1:06:24 851 1:00:00 861 1:15:00
East Los Angeles Doctors Hospital 361 1:03:00 439 1:02:12 429 1:08:12
Emanate Foothill Prebyterian Hospital 503 0:57:48 597 1:12:00 599 1:55:00
Emanate Health Inter-Community Hospital 468 0:52:00 497 1:23:00 483 1:37:00
Emanate Health Queen of the Valley Hospital 788 0:57:18 847 1:03:24 833 1:18:00
Encino Hospital Medical Center 138 0:18:18 215 0:41:12 229 0:28:24
Garfield Medical Center 316 0:21:00 313 0:44:00 216 0:41:00
Greater El Monte Community Hospital 393 1:00:00 414 1:15:00 362 1:20:42
Henry Mayo Newhall Hospital 1,211 0:33:00 1,222 0:40:54 1,242 0:42:54
Hollywood Presbyterian Medical Center 702 0:41:00 815 0:44:36 809 0:39:00
Huntington Hospital 946 0:43:30 1,022 0:48:54 1,208 0:53:00
Kaiser Foundation - Baldwin Park 328 1:08:00 341 2:08:00 430 1:42:06
Kaiser Foundation - Bellflower 465 1:51:12 515 2:04:12 578 2:15:00
Kaiser Foundation - Panorama City 293 0:30:48 286 0:36:00 326 0:36:00
Kaiser Foundation - South Bay 384 0:52:42 382 1:09:48 477 0:53:12
Kaiser Foundation - Los Angeles 83 0:36:36 52 0:52:48 236 0:45:30
Kaiser Foundation - West Los Angeles 589 0:45:12 578 1:15:18 590 1:14:00
Kaiser Foundation - Woodland Hills 158 0:49:48 226 0:59:30 226 0:58:30
Los Angeles Community Hospital at Norwalk 127 0:47:12 143 1:12:24 166 1:09:00
LAC+USC Medical Center 1,861 0:38:00 1,911 0:37:00 1,875 0:42:00
Harbor-UCLA Medical Center 964 0:51:42 954 0:46:00 907 0:55:48
LAC Olive Medical Center 239 0:32:00 249 0:38:36 240 0:49:06
Lakewood Regional Medical Cetner 590 1:41:12 573 2:29:48 520 3:09:06
Long Beach V.A. (NON-BASIC) 8 0:52:00 8 1:50:48 16 1:09:30
Martin Luther King, Jr. Community Hospital 750 0:54:00 905 0:45:00 1,005 0:44:00
Memorial Hospital of Gardena 883 0:39:00 922 0:57:00 986 0:55:00
Memorial Care Long Beach Medical Center 880 1:00:06 969 1:05:12 896 1:33:30
Mission Community Hospital 389 0:25:00 424 0:33:42 350 0:34:00
Monterey Park Hospital 114 0:25:24 160 0:23:30 192 0:24:00
PIH Health Downey Hospital 635 0:56:36 635 1:22:36 661 0:54:00
PIH Health Good Samaritan Hospital 840 0:37:00 902 0:40:00 927 0:44:00
PIH Health Whittier Hospital 1,057 0:48:00 1,065 1:02:36 1,053 1:03:00
Pacifica Hospital of the Valley 240 0:24:12 311 0:29:00 188 0:39:00
Palmdale Regional Medical Center 810 0:43:06 880 1:07:06 931 0:52:00
Pomona Valley Hospital Medical Center 1,589 1:00:00 1,596 1:13:00 1,640 1:04:00
Providence Cedars-Sinai  Tarzana Medical Center 506 0:41:30 589 0:42:00 655 0:38:00
Providence Holy Cross Medical Center 642 0:20:00 602 0:27:00 639 0:25:12
Providence Little Company of Mary Medical Center - San Pedro 512 0:43:54 555 0:48:00 587 0:56:24
Providence Little Company of Mary Medical Center - Torrance 561 0:43:00 586 0:47:00 631 1:03:00
Providence Saint John's Health Center 592 0:46:00 661 0:49:00 662 0:57:00
Providence Saint Joseph Medical Center 1,164 0:40:42 1,356 0:45:00 1,406 0:44:00
Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 530 0:33:00 637 0:37:24 597 0:35:24
St. Francis Medical Center 1,158 1:51:00 1,094 1:47:00 1,080 1:42:00
San Dimas Community Hospital 219 0:48:12 250 1:04:12 288 1:33:54
San Gabriel Valley Medical Center 299 1:01:00 293 1:02:00 341 1:51:00
Santa Monica - UCLA Medical Center 165 0:46:48 174 0:45:42 230 1:03:06
Sherman Oaks Hospital 519 0:31:00 629 0:33:00 535 0:49:00
Southern California Hospital at Culver City 407 0:44:24 370 1:05:00 433 1:04:48
Torrance Memorial Medical Center 745 1:08:36 804 1:05:42 813 1:03:48
USC Arcadia Hospital 767 1:02:00 791 1:22:00 800 1:19:00
USC Verdugo Hills Medical Center 303 0:50:00 230 0:51:18 199 1:09:36
Valley Presbyterian Hospital 504 0:26:00 548 0:35:18 591 0:32:00
Wadsworth VA Medical Center (NON-BASIC) 68 0:21:54 70 0:23:12 76 0:28:00

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

15



Los Angeles County EMS Agency APOT -1 Cont...

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

West Hills Hospital and Medical Center 661 0:56:00 629 1:03:00 593 1:10:48
Whittier Hospital Medical Center 313 0:36:48 376 0:57:30 434 0:49:00
Adventist Health - Simi Valley (Ventura Co.) 4 0:18:12 7 0:12:36 1 0:09:00
Arrowhead Regional Medical Center (San Bernardino Co.) 2 0:27:24
Children's Hospital of Orange County (Orange Co.) 3 0:07:12 7 0:11:36 3 0:04:24
Chino Valley Medical Center (San Bernardino Co.) 4 0:32:24 4 0:20:06 7 0:14:24
Kaiser Foundation Hospital - Anaheim (Orange Co.) 7 1:05:36 1 0:00:00 15 1:11:36
Kaiser Foundation Hospital - Ontario (San Bernardino Co.) 6 1:50:30 1 0:16:00 3 1:49:00
La Palma Intercommunity Hospital (Orange Co.) 177 1:22:00 212 1:27:54 215 1:46:12
Los Alamitos Medical Center (Orange Co.) 234 1:00:06 217 1:11:00 247 0:59:12
Los Robles Hospital & Medical Center (Ventura Co.) 128 0:30:18 123 0:30:48 134 0:40:00
Montclair Hospital Medical Center (San Bernardino Co.) 94 0:23:00 84 0:34:24 131 0:32:00
Placentia Linda Hospital (Orange Co.) 2 0:04:00 3 0:21:36
San Antonio Community Hospital (San Bernardino Co.) 4 0:16:30 3 0:25:48 7 0:29:00
St. John Regional Medical Center (Ventura Co.) 10 0:40:36 10 0:41:36 5 5:40:48
St. Jude Medical Center (Orange Co.) 222 0:36:54 263 0:49:48 295 0:42:00
UCI Medical Center (Orange Co.) 32 0:11:00 27 0:15:24 35 0:26:12

Los Angeles County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health--Glendale 442 249 61 1 1 394 251 65 12 1 381 254 56 9 4
Adventist Health--White Memorial 210 82 14 0 0 243 96 22 8 2 215 119 21 4 0
Alhambra Hospital Medical Center 276 46 1 0 0 269 70 7 0 0 312 80 10 1 0
Antelope Valley Hospital 552 697 124 27 11 554 675 137 47 24 441 588 123 39 34
Beverly Hospital 406 141 27 0 2 435 124 27 1 1 397 111 30 14 3
Catalina Island Medical Center 31 0 0 0 0 18 2 0 0 0 18 0 1 0 0
Cedars-Sinai Marina Del Rey Hospital 317 223 25 0 0 301 253 34 1 0 310 271 32 3 1
Cedars Sinai Medical Center 646 546 54 5 1 582 526 99 4 0 683 580 72 3 1
Centinela Hospital Medical Center 515 681 136 38 18 494 699 184 51 49 404 581 162 60 50
Children's Hospital Los Angeles 82 7 0 0 0 81 7 2 0 0 110 4 1 0 0
Coast Plaza Hospital 157 130 47 22 8 177 85 60 22 19 179 72 38 20 17
College Medical Center 236 64 21 7 3 253 91 22 9 4 279 93 19 7 5
Community Hospital of Huntington Park 171 242 86 12 14 211 216 86 21 16 205 157 107 41 21
Diginity Health--California Hospital Medical Center 320 163 50 5 2 287 148 45 12 1 275 140 45 18 10
Diginity Health--Glendale Memorial Hospital Medical Center 430 110 13 2 0 411 148 42 4 0 435 163 33 2 0
Diginity Health--Northridge Hospital Medical Center 740 252 16 0 0 761 333 63 4 0 777 357 43 5 0
Diginity Health--St. Mary Medical Center 481 205 76 15 10 503 264 71 10 3 441 303 91 19 7
East Los Angeles Doctors Hospital 204 115 29 9 4 252 131 45 10 1 252 124 46 3 4
Emanate Foothill Prebyterian Hospital 228 222 48 3 2 242 264 67 18 6 249 193 95 43 19
Emanate Health Inter-Community Hospital 218 203 42 4 1 236 168 66 13 14 261 124 67 18 13
Emanate Health Queen of the Valley Hospital 454 240 72 16 6 460 274 83 13 17 485 231 75 22 20
Encino Hospital Medical Center 127 10 1 0 0 171 31 11 2 0 186 40 3 0 0
Garfield Medical Center 278 29 5 4 0 243 52 13 4 1 182 21 6 5 2
Greater El Monte Community Hospital 212 134 34 11 2 199 144 53 13 5 180 119 48 12 3
Henry Mayo Newhall Hospital 826 357 26 2 0 715 449 55 2 1 710 460 63 8 1
Hollywood Presbyterian Medical Center 422 248 31 1 0 488 278 48 1 0 519 266 21 3 0
Huntington Hospital 674 218 42 7 5 676 262 65 10 9 790 321 75 15 7
Kaiser Foundation - Baldwin Park 141 143 41 2 1 97 151 53 24 16 158 172 69 14 17
Kaiser Foundation - Bellflower 167 176 79 29 14 168 198 91 32 26 214 185 108 42 29
Kaiser Foundation - Panorama City 183 109 1 0 0 177 106 2 1 0 181 132 13 0 0
Kaiser Foundation - South Bay 196 158 25 4 1 161 168 44 9 0 219 216 33 7 2
Kaiser Foundation - Los Angeles 51 29 3 0 0 26 23 3 0 0 136 87 11 2 0
Kaiser Foundation - West Los Angeles 299 260 27 2 1 209 271 74 19 5 250 257 67 13 3
Kaiser Foundation - Woodland Hills 110 33 11 2 2 129 77 17 2 1 150 58 14 3 1

October 2022 November 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

December 2022

16



Los Angeles County EMS Agency APOT - 2 Cont...
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Los Angeles Community Hospital at Norwalk 83 31 8 5 0 91 34 11 4 3 112 35 14 2 3
LAC+USC Medical Center 1256 521 73 10 1 1294 549 60 5 3 1263 503 98 7 4
Harbor-UCLA Medical Center 605 278 57 12 12 619 253 62 11 9 560 258 55 23 11
LAC Olive Medical Center 181 54 4 0 0 175 61 11 1 1 163 61 12 4 0
Lakewood Regional Medical Cetner 246 208 90 32 14 191 176 109 59 38 164 146 99 54 57
Long Beach V.A. (NON-BASIC) 3 4 1 0 0 2 3 3 0 0 8 6 1 1 0
Martin Luther King, Jr. Community Hospital 373 303 63 10 1 529 327 37 10 2 577 360 60 6 2
Memorial Hospital of Gardena 508 331 35 6 3 440 390 71 17 4 484 403 70 23 6
Memorial Care Long Beach Medical Center 564 225 44 18 29 635 223 56 23 32 591 173 64 28 40
Mission Community Hospital 296 93 0 0 0 275 141 8 0 0 221 121 6 2 0
Monterey Park Hospital 95 17 2 0 0 135 20 5 0 0 163 22 5 2 0
PIH Health Downey Hospital 345 225 54 9 2 320 211 70 23 11 416 185 44 11 5
PIH Health Good Samaritan Hospital 543 268 25 4 0 534 334 30 4 0 527 361 35 3 1
PIH Health Whittier Hospital 521 481 53 2 0 456 484 111 9 5 471 460 106 8 8
Pacifica Hospital of the Valley 209 23 6 2 0 249 52 7 3 0 140 37 9 1 1
Palmdale Regional Medical Center 376 363 53 14 4 337 388 104 32 19 385 438 78 21 9
Pomona Valley Hospital Medical Center 783 630 148 17 11 807 541 204 24 20 940 516 139 36 9
Providence Cedars-Sinai  Tarzana Medical Center 319 166 20 1 0 346 220 21 2 0 393 239 21 2 0
Providence Holy Cross Medical Center 573 64 4 1 0 513 76 11 1 1 536 86 15 1 1
Providence Little Company of Mary Medical Center - San Pedro 294 192 22 3 1 290 229 32 4 0 312 222 40 10 3
Providence Little Company of Mary Medical Center - Torrance 298 239 17 7 0 324 218 42 1 1 315 232 60 10 14
Providence Saint John's Health Center 376 179 32 5 0 404 212 36 8 1 403 197 45 14 3
Providence Saint Joseph Medical Center 730 402 31 1 0 798 496 60 2 0 853 489 62 2 0
Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 395 116 17 2 0 464 148 20 4 1 436 140 14 6 1
St. Francis Medical Center 536 333 173 72 44 516 267 194 53 64 578 288 102 55 57
San Dimas Community Hospital 131 69 13 5 1 142 65 28 3 12 180 58 24 15 11
San Gabriel Valley Medical Center 195 72 17 7 8 166 92 23 8 4 199 77 40 10 15
Santa Monica - UCLA Medical Center 115 40 7 3 0 116 49 8 1 0 141 63 16 7 3
Sherman Oaks Hospital 399 111 9 0 0 448 162 18 1 0 352 144 35 4 0
Southern California Hospital at Culver City 202 186 17 2 0 166 160 35 9 0 199 184 39 10 1
Torrance Memorial Medical Center 249 385 101 10 0 293 391 106 11 3 297 415 92 8 1
USC Arcadia Hospital 425 254 66 17 5 395 264 82 35 15 414 260 96 24 6
USC Verdugo Hills Medical Center 185 96 19 1 2 132 76 17 3 2 94 76 22 4 3
Valley Presbyterian Hospital 417 79 7 1 0 415 109 20 4 0 454 121 13 1 2
Wadsworth VA Medical Center (NON-BASIC) 60 7 1 0 0 59 9 1 1 0 61 14 1 0 0
West Hills Hospital and Medical Center 371 238 44 7 1 282 277 55 13 2 243 267 77 5 1
Whittier Hospital Medical Center 215 77 18 3 0 237 102 23 7 7 286 115 24 5 4
Adventist Health - Simi Valley (Ventura Co.) 3 1 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Arrowhead Regional Medical Center (San Bernardino Co.) 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Children's Hospital of Orange County (Orange Co.) 3 0 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0
Chino Valley Medical Center (San Bernardino Co.) 3 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Foundation Hospital - Anaheim (Orange Co.) 3 2 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 4 7 4 0 0
Kaiser Foundation Hospital - Ontario (San Bernardino Co.) 1 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 1 0
La Palma Intercommunity Hospital (Orange Co.) 74 73 26 3 1 86 77 35 8 6 103 68 28 7 9
Los Alamitos Medical Center (Orange Co.) 115 93 21 4 1 114 72 24 6 1 150 71 23 2 1
Los Robles Hospital & Medical Center (Ventura Co.) 96 31 0 1 0 76 45 2 0 0 86 44 3 0 1
Montclair Hospital Medical Center (San Bernardino Co.) 77 14 3 0 0 61 23 0 0 0 100 28 2 1 0
Placentia Linda Hospital (Orange Co.) 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0
San Antonio Community Hospital (San Bernardino Co.) 4 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 3 4 0 0 0
St. John Regional Medical Center (Ventura Co.) 4 5 1 0 0 5 4 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 2
St. Jude Medical Center (Orange Co.) 118 95 7 1 1 161 82 16 3 1 204 81 10 0 0
UCI Medical Center (Orange Co.) 28 4 0 0 0 24 3 0 0 0 30 5 0 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

17



Marin County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Children's Hospital And Research Center Oakland 1 0:19:55
CPMC-Van Ness 1 0:07:06 1 0:20:33
Kaiser Permanente - Oakland Medical Center 2 0:09:41
Kaiser Permanente, Richmond 1 0:10:02
Kaiser Permanente, San Francisco 1 0:10:00
Kaiser Permanente, San Rafael 367 0:13:51 371 0:15:15 359 0:13:07
Marin Health Medical Center 786 0:13:25 719 0:12:53 848 0:13:57
Novato Community Hospital 198 0:10:00 186 0:10:05 216 0:10:00
Petaluma Valley Hospital 1 0:14:11
Santa Rosa Memorial Hospital, Montgomery 1 0:15:11
St. Mary's Medical Center 1 0:14:41
Stanford University Medical Center 1 0:04:02
UCSF Benioff Children's Hospital 1 0:08:43 1 0:10:00
UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 4 0:26:38 3 0:30:34 1 0:27:16
Veterans Administration Medical Center, San Francisco 1 0:05:07 1 0:08:15

Marin County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Children's Hospital And Research Center Oakland 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CPMC-Van Ness 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente - Oakland Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Richmond 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, San Francisco 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, San Rafael 362 5 0 0 0 363 7 1 0 0 352 7 0 0 0
Marin Health Medical Center 775 11 0 0 0 713 6 0 0 0 830 18 0 0 0
Novato Community Hospital 196 2 0 0 0 184 2 0 0 0 214 1 1 0 0
Petaluma Valley Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Rosa Memorial Hospital, Montgomery 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
St. Mary's Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Stanford University Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UCSF Benioff Children's Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 1 3 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Veterans Administration Medical Center, San Francisco 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Merced County EMS Agency

Merced County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Doctor's Medical Center Modesto 32 0:24:28 33 0:24:08 37 0:24:59
Emanuel Medical Center Turlock 202 0:46:55 201 0:41:17 205 0:43:49
Memorial Hospital Los Banos 214 0:24:30 229 0:28:18 255 0:35:25
Memorial Hospital North Modesto 28 0:28:09 22 0:20:24 27 0:19:12
Mercy Medical Center Merced 1,285 0:43:52 1,390 0:48:00 1,404 0:44:57
Valley Children's Hospital Madera 16 0:22:53 16 0:24:25 7 0:18:26

Marin County EMS Agency

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022

18



Merced County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Doctor's Medical Center Modesto 28 3 0 1 0 26 7 0 0 0 31 5 1 0 0
Emanuel Medical Center Turlock 115 79 8 0 0 113 83 3 1 1 107 90 7 1 0
Memorial Hospital Los Banos 166 47 1 0 0 176 51 1 0 1 177 73 1 0 4
Memorial Hospital North Modesto 23 3 2 0 0 19 3 0 0 0 24 3 0 0 0
Mercy Medical Center Merced 762 463 48 4 8 715 596 68 6 5 746 585 60 4 9
Valley Children's Hospital Madera 11 4 1 0 0 10 6 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 0

Monterey County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Community Hospital of the Monterey Peninsula 791 0:12:44 847 0:14:10 905 0:14:00
George L. Mee Memorial Hospital 51 0:07:09 34 0:09:28 36 0:08:00
Natividad Medical Center 710 0:17:30 656 0:19:01 689 0:21:00
Salinas Valley Memorial Hospital 661 0:16:38 664 0:20:00 705 0:20:34

Monterey County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Community Hospital of the Monterey Peninsula 773 18 0 0 0 809 38 0 0 0 869 35 1 0 0
George L. Mee Memorial Hospital 51 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 0 0 36 0 0 0 0
Natividad Medical Center 656 50 4 0 0 594 60 2 0 0 616 69 4 0 0
Salinas Valley Memorial Hospital 616 43 2 0 0 596 61 7 0 0 631 69 5 0 0

Mountain Valley EMS Agency

Mountain Valley EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health Sonora 97 0:11:24 79 0:11:00 108 0:13:17
John C Fremont Healthcare District 63 0:12:48 70 0:08:06 78 0:09:17
Kaiser South Sacramento 13 0:17:00 7 0:34:12 11 1:52:00
Mark Twain Medical Center 109 0:08:00 142 0:09:00 162 0:11:00
Memorial Medical Center, Modesto 15 0:27:35 8 0:12:00 11 0:22:00
Mercy General Hospital 22 0:48:24 12 0:33:24 20 0:30:12
St. Josephs Medical Center Stockton 27 0:20:00 30 0:25:54 36 0:26:30
Sutter Amador Hospital 343 0:12:00 336 0:10:00 375 0:15:00
UC Davis Medical Center 14 0:16:36 11 0:16:00 11 0:19:00

Mountain Valley EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health Sonora 96 1 0 0 0 78 1 0 0 0 103 4 1 0 0
John C Fremont Healthcare District 61 2 0 0 0 69 1 0 0 0 77 1 0 0 0
Kaiser South Sacramento 12 0 0 0 0 5 2 0 0 0 6 3 1 1 0
Mark Twain Medical Center 107 2 0 0 0 139 2 0 0 0 158 2 0 1 0
Memorial Medical Center, Modesto 13 2 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 9 2 0 0 0
Mercy General Hospital 14 7 1 0 0 8 4 0 0 0 12 8 8 8 8
St. Josephs Medical Center Stockton 24 2 1 0 0 25 4 0 1 0 30 5 1 0 0
Sutter Amador Hospital 329 8 2 0 0 334 2 0 0 0 354 17 3 0 0
UC Davis Medical Center 12 2 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 10 1 0 0 0

December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022

Monterey County EMS Agency

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

19



Napa County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health Saint Helena 66 0:09:30 65 0:11:10 58 0:10:38
Children's Hospital Oakland 3 0:16:36 1 0:09:26
Kaiser Oakland 1 0:37:53
Kaiser Santa Rosa 7 0:24:01 11 0:14:41 5 0:12:20
Kasier Vacaville 3 0:09:23 1 0:36:49
Kasier Vallejo 193 0:19:08 202 0:20:00 195 0:19:05
Northbay Medical Center 0 1 0:04:00
Queen of the Valley Medical Center 532 0:14:00 572 0:14:59 690 0:16:36
Santa Rosa Memorial Hospital 2 0:09:13 2 0:07:43 n/a
Sutter Santa Rosa Hospital 1 0:18:18 1 0:25:02 2 0:05:48
Sutter Solano Hospital 28 0:20:23 21 0:13:32 26 0:21:22
UC Davis Medical Center 1 0:00:55 2 0:19:28 1 0:06:28
UCSF Bennioff Children's Hospital 1 0:10:17 1 0:13:00 0
UCSF Medical Center 2 0:10:25

Napa County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health Saint Helena 66 0 0 0 0 64 1 0 0 0 58 0 0 0 0
Children's Hospital Oakland 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Oakland 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Santa Rosa 5 2 0 0 0 10 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0
Kasier Vacaville 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Kasier Vallejo 179 14 0 0 0 183 19 0 0 0 178 17 0 0 0
Northbay Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Queen of the Valley Medical Center 507 25 0 0 0 538 33 1 0 0 645 43 2 0 0
Santa Rosa Memorial Hospital 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sutter Santa Rosa Hospital 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Sutter Solano Hospital 25 3 0 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 23 3 0 0 0
UC Davis Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
UCSF Bennioff Children's Hospital 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UCSF Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0

North Coast EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health, Clearlake 284 0:09:18 319 0:10:04 371 0:11:55
Jerold Phelps Community Hospital 25 0:04:00 23 0:04:00 19 0:04:53
Mad River Community Hospital 206 0:03:00 286 0:04:00 256 0:04:00
Redwood Memorial Hospital 121 0:05:00 165 0:06:00 169 0:04:29
Saint Joseph Hospital, Eureka 582 0:06:00 646 0:06:37 644 0:05:30
Sutter Coastal Hospital 130 0:04:08 144 0:03:06 150 0:05:36
Sutter Lakeside Hospital 176 0:07:55 285 0:07:37 261 0:08:15

Napa County EMS Agency

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

North Coast EMS Agency

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

20



North Coast EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health, Clearlake 282 2 0 0 0 317 1 1 0 0 368 3 0 0 0
Jerold Phelps Community Hospital 25 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 0 19 0 0 0 0
Mad River Community Hospital 205 1 0 0 0 280 4 2 0 0 255 1 0 0 0
Redwood Memorial Hospital 120 0 0 1 0 165 0 0 0 0 169 0 0 0 0
Saint Joseph Hospital, Eureka 577 2 1 0 2 632 10 1 1 0 634 6 2 2 0
Sutter Coastal Hospital 130 0 0 0 0 144 0 0 0 0 149 0 0 0 1
Sutter Lakeside Hospital 174 2 0 0 0 283 2 0 0 0 260 1 0 0 0

Northern California EMS Agency

Northern California EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Banner Lassen Medical Center 132 0:06:54 147 0:07:24 169 0:06:00
Doctors on Duty 3 0:18:24 1 0:14:00
Eastern Plumas Hospital, Portola Campus 22 0:05:54 25 0:06:00 34 0:06:00
Enloe Medical Center, Esplanade 5 0:09:06 2 0:07:12 2 0:03:00
Mayers Memorial Hospital District 3 0:08:54 5 0:05:36 3 0:22:00
Mercy Medical Center, Redding 8 0:10:54 13 0:12:48 11 0:40:00
Modoc Medical Center 52 0:03:00 65 0:05:00 71 0:02:00
Northern Nevada Medical Center 1 0:08:15
Northern Nevada Sierra Medical Center 1 0:04:00 2 0:05:08
Plumas District Hospital 68 0:05:00 50 0:06:00 56 0:05:00
Redwood Memorial Hospital 6 0:05:34 4 0:08:18
Renown Medical Center 11 0:08:00 12 0:05:54 18 0:14:54
Renown Regional Medical Center 35 0:13:12 16 0:10:30 15 0:09:36
Renown South Meadows Medical Center 1 0:11:00
Saint Mary's Regional Medical Center 5 0:09:48 5 0:09:54 11 0:09:12
Seneca District Hospital 29 0:04:43 30 0:13:04 30 0:05:47
Shasta Regional Medical Center 4 1:35:06 3 1:48:36 1 0:03:00
Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital 3 0:09:00 1 0:07:00
Surprise Valley Community Hospital 3 0:03:48 2 0:01:48 2 0:02:00
Tahoe Forest Hospital 3 0:03:48 6 0:08:30
Trinity Hospital 53 0:03:00 41 0:04:00 69 0:04:00

October 2022 November 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

December 2022

21



Northern California EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Banner Lassen Medical Center 132 0 0 0 0 147 0 0 0 0 168 1 0 0 0
Doctors on Duty 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Eastern Plumas Hospital, Portola Campus 21 1 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 0 0
Enloe Medical Center, Esplanade 5  0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Mayers Memorial Hospital District 3 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0
Mercy Medical Center, Redding 8 0 0 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 7 3 1 0 0
Modoc Medical Center 52 0 0 0 0 65 0 0 0 0 71 0 0 0 0
Northern Nevada Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Northern Nevada Sierra Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Plumas District Hospital 68 0 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 56 0 0 0 0
Redwood Memorial Hospital 6 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Renown Medical Center 11 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 17 1 0 0 0
Renown Regional Medical Center 32 3 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0
Renown South Meadows Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Saint Mary's Regional Medical Center 5 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0
Seneca District Hospital 27 2 0 0 0 29 1 0 0 0 29 1 0 0 0
Shasta Regional Medical Center 2 1 0 1 0 1 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital 3 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Surprise Valley Community Hospital 3  0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Tahoe Forest Hospital 3 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trinity Hospital 53 0 0 0 0 41 0 0 0 0 68 1 0 0 0

Orange County EMS Agency

Orange County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Anaheim Global Medical Center 346 0:34:12 394 0:41:57 352 0:37:55
Anaheim Regional Medical Center 452 0:36:18 531 0:37:16 562 0:39:20
Chapman Global Medical Center 126 0:10:49 152 0:12:37 154 0:10:29
Children's Hospital of Orange County 467 0:18:20 499 0:15:55 453 0:15:40
Foothill Regional Medical Center 69 0:33:05 113 0:39:14 122 0:29:37
Fountain Valley Regional Hospital and Medical Center 698 0:44:42 749 0:48:15 540 0:47:04
Garden Grove Hospital & Medical Center 469 0:35:26 494 0:49:45 420 1:05:32
Hoag Hospital Irvine 680 0:21:35 616 0:22:11 571 0:25:01
Hoag Memorial Hospital Presbyterian 1734 0:15:22 1595 0:15:47 1790 0:17:09
Huntington Beach Hospital 447 0:34:51 445 0:27:42 506 0:37:45
Kaiser Permanente - Anaheim Medical Center 455 0:47:46 457 0:53:33 467 0:56:39
Kaiser Permanente - Irvine Medical Center 453 0:36:15 547 0:49:30 654 0:39:08
La Palma Intercommunity Hospital 305 1:05:29 347 1:15:45 345 1:19:20
Los Alamitos Medical Center 548 1:01:44 467 1:14:04 512 1:03:01
Mission Hospital - Laguna Beach 212 0:34:31 273 0:32:56 361 0:42:12
Mission Hospital Regional Medical Center 1368 0:33:57 1435 0:37:22 1526 0:36:44
Orange Coast Memorial Medical Center 490 0:27:07 534 0:31:04 468 0:33:22
Orange County Global Medical Center 776 0:28:11 754 0:30:58 690 0:34:08
Placentia Linda Hospital 424 0:18:01 536 0:33:09 530 0:32:13
Saddleback Memorial Medical Center - Laguna Hills 793 0:21:05 869 0:23:34 942 0:23:28
South Coast Global Medical Center 253 0:23:05 282 0:34:10 345 0:30:10
St. Joseph Hospital 1075 0:26:42 1024 0:28:34 1146 0:30:00
St. Jude Medical Center 1283 0:37:07 1254 0:38:55 1400 0:40:41
UCI Medical Center 924 0:31:58 912 0:33:37 1066 0:43:18
West Anaheim Medical Center 826 0:50:46 832 1:11:43 779 1:20:50
Kaiser Permanente, Downey 3 1:05:39 6 1:47:08 3 1:09:53

December 2022November 2022October 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

22



Orange County EMS Agency APOT -1 Cont...

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Kaiser Permanente, South Bay 1 0:30:49
Lakewood Regional Medical Center 1 0:11:08
MemorialCare Long Beach Medical Center 23 2:25:13 38 3:46:38 27 2:42:47
PIH Health Hospital, Whittier 6 0:31:11 3 2:06:32 2 0:34:07
Veterans Administration Long Beach Healthcare System 1 0:28:52
Whittier Hospital Medical Center 19 0:53:07 24 0:37:33 23 0:41:03

Orange County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Anaheim Global Medical Center 249 77 5 3 0 271 88 13 8 1 251 84 6 3 0
Anaheim Regional Medical Center 315 121 10 1 0 381 136 6 2 1 350 177 14 8 0
Chapman Global Medical Center 112 2 0 0 0 129 4 0 0 0 123 1 0 1 0
Children's Hospital of Orange County 425 28 2 0 0 461 17 0 0 0 427 15 1 0 0
Foothill Regional Medical Center 58 10 0 1 0 84 22 1 5 0 94 23 1 2 0
Fountain Valley Regional Hospital and Medical Center 477 173 20 18 0 481 221 27 14 0 374 122 15 20 0
Garden Grove Hospital & Medical Center 329 122 7 5 0 307 144 20 15 2 239 128 27 24 0
Hoag Hospital Irvine 602 73 1 0 0 540 70 2 0 0 483 85 1 2 0
Hoag Memorial Hospital Presbyterian 1660 54 2 0 0 1520 48 2 2 0 1669 89 1 1 0
Huntington Beach Hospital 345 78 3 11 2 364 58 5 9 0 377 99 8 13 1
Kaiser Permanente - Anaheim Medical Center 256 167 11 10 0 231 184 23 10 0 254 151 17 20 0
Kaiser Permanente - Irvine Medical Center 329 105 8 2 0 337 173 24 11 0 436 182 17 14 0
La Palma Intercommunity Hospital 122 43 8 11 0 131 75 14 21 0 126 63 16 20 3
Los Alamitos Medical Center 263 173 29 25 0 187 157 23 30 0 240 157 21 27 0
Mission Hospital - Laguna Beach 156 49 2 1 0 207 58 3 2 0 243 95 10 8 0
Mission Hospital Regional Medical Center 983 339 16 9 0 979 400 23 19 0 1080 399 16 18 0
Orange Coast Memorial Medical Center 398 77 4 2 0 431 85 7 6 0 353 99 6 5 0
Orange County Global Medical Center 656 97 11 9 0 622 95 14 11 2 522 124 10 11 0
Placentia Linda Hospital 386 28 4 1 1 442 77 9 5 0 424 91 6 2 0
Saddleback Memorial Medical Center - Laguna Hills 707 80 0 0 0 743 117 3 0 0 802 128 5 2 0
South Coast Global Medical Center 216 32 0 2 0 224 44 5 4 0 276 55 5 5 0
St. Joseph Hospital 881 147 7 5 1 806 150 16 6 0 883 185 17 4 0
St. Jude Medical Center 823 293 22 8 0 775 305 22 15 1 847 365 26 16 0
UCI Medical Center 754 119 16 16 0 687 170 14 8 0 795 183 23 23 4
West Anaheim Medical Center 471 291 31 18 0 432 263 58 60 1 413 238 41 75 2
Kaiser Permanente, Downey 0 2 1 0 0 2 3 0 1 0 0 2 1 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, South Bay 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lakewood Regional Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
MemorialCare Long Beach Medical Center 10 8 1 2 2 24 8 1 0 5 18 5 0 1 3
PIH Health Hospital, Whittier 4 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0
Veterans Administration Long Beach Healthcare System 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Whittier Hospital Medical Center 13 5 1 0 0 19 4 0 1 0 14 9 0 0 0

Riverside County EMS Agency

Riverside County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Abrazo West Campus 1 0:10:00
Anaheim Global Medical Center 1 0:32:37
Arrowhead Regional Medical Center 5 0:23:26 12 1:12:27 12 0:51:00
Children's Hospital Los Angeles 1 0:00:18
Children's Hospital of Orange County 5 0:13:16 6 0:32:35 8 0:20:57

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

23



Riverside County EMS Agency APOT -1 Cont...

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Chino Valley Medical Center 1 0:11:43 1 0:31:14
Corona Regional Medical Center 777 1:08:33 775 1:34:41 830 1:49:27
Corona Rehabilitation Hospital 4 0:13:31 2 0:20:22 3 0:56:15
Desert Regional Medical Center 1448 0:21:13 1341 0:27:30 1486 0:30:45
Eisenhower Medical Center 1317 0:18:23 1438 0:21:26 1483 0:24:18
Emergency Treatment Services 1 1:04:38
Havasu Regional Medical Center 1 0:10:00 1 0:05:00
Hemet Valley Medical Center 1167 1:12:04 1150 1:33:03 887 2:29:00
Inland Valley Medical Center 1041 0:55:42 972 0:52:00 1070 0:54:19
JFK - John F Kennedy Memorial Hospital 675 0:13:53 751 0:15:00 769 0:15:00
Kaiser Permanente, Anaheim 6 3:44:29 5 1:00:27 7 0:52:47
Kaiser Permanente, Fontana 21 0:37:58 36 1:59:05 28 0:59:53
Kaiser Permanente, Irvine 1 1:19:51
Kaiser Permanente, Los Angeles (Sunset) 2 0:43:10
Kaiser Permanente, Moreno Valley 322 1:00:13 365 1:13:45 380 0:49:43
Kaiser Permanente, Ontario 134 1:04:08 169 1:20:37 201 1:26:54
Kaiser Permanente, Riverside 546 1:24:32 528 1:51:03 593 1:24:29
Kaiser Permanente, San Diego 1 0:08:17
Kidney Institute at Eisenhower Medical Center 2 0:13:12 1 0:07:59 1 0:07:17
Kindred Hospital, Riverside 3 1:17:31 3 0:48:22 3 2:42:36
La Paz Regional Hospital 2 1:10:33
Loma Linda University Behavioral Medicine Center 1 0:06:42 4 1:19:18 2 0:17:13
Loma Linda University Heart and Surgical Hospital 2 0:25:45
Loma Linda University Medical Center 131 1:01:36 117 0:50:35 118 1:10:06
Loma Linda University Medical Center, East Campus Hospital 1 1:51:50
Loma Linda University Medical Center, Murrieta 825 0:44:31 811 1:08:01 902 1:07:00
Menifee Valley Medical Center 292 0:51:21 277 2:16:08 390 2:06:38
Mission Hospital 4 0:35:23
Mountainview Hospital 1 0:08:00
Not Applicable 4 0:57:36 5 1:24:28 3 0:22:15
Not Recorded 1 0:05:24 3 0:24:26
Orange County Global Medical Center 2 0:20:00 2 0:08:58 2 0:05:20
Other Not Listed 5 0:09:00 3 0:05:00 4 0:20:00
Palo Verde Hospital 144 0:18:34 156 0:16:33 168 0:19:15
Palomar Health Downtown Campus 1 0:11:47
Palomar Medical Center 1 0:31:32
Parkview Community Hospital Medical Center 732 0:30:39 767 0:54:36 758 0:50:17
Phoenix Children's Hospital 1 0:20:00
Pomona Valley Hospital Medical Center 1 0:26:16 3 1:06:54 1 0:25:44
Rady Children's Hospital 2 0:16:27 5 0:29:06 3 0:29:30
Rancho Springs Medical Center 478 0:53:07 565 1:03:32 601 0:47:03
Redlands Community Hospital 46 0:37:01 60 1:28:44 51 1:55:20
Riverside Community Hospital 1460 1:10:09 1516 1:29:19 1470 1:22:46
Riverside University Health System Medical Center 1581 0:29:42 1714 0:32:17 1688 0:32:45
San Antonio Regional Hospital 7 1:32:09 2 0:25:51 3 1:11:42
San Gorgonio Memorial Hospital 571 0:43:47 624 1:22:17 676 1:22:10
Sharp Memorial Hospital 1 0:11:00
St. Bernardine Medical Center 2 0:14:12 1 1:57:49 2 0:46:52
St. Joseph Hospital, Orange 1 0:14:01
St. Jude Medical Center 2 0:45:01
Temecula Valley Hospital 584 0:49:21 562 0:55:57 629 1:21:22
Tri-City Medical Center 1 0:08:00 1 0:17:34
University of California, Irvine Medical Center 1 0:20:00 2 0:11:33 2 0:10:45
University of California, San Diego Medical Center 2 0:19:00 1 0:19:47
University of California, San Diego, John M. & Sally B. Thornton Hospital 1 0:00:00
Veterans Administration Loma Linda Healthcare System 25 0:36:06 35 0:28:41 27 0:37:28

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

24



Riverside County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Abrazo West Campus 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Anaheim Global Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Arrowhead Regional Medical Center 4 1 0 0 0 8 2 2 0 0 8 4 0 0 0
Children's Hospital Los Angeles 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Children's Hospital of Orange County 5 0 0 0 0 4 2 0 0 0 7 1 0 0 0
Chino Valley Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Corona Regional Medical Center 343 341 70 19 4 304 322 100 31 18 304 334 119 46 27
Corona Rehabilitation Hospital 4 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0
Desert Regional Medical Center 1277 167 4 0 0 1102 206 25 5 3 1209 218 41 8 10
Eisenhower Medical Center 1218 97 1 0 1 1276 157 4 1 0 1256 218 9 0 0
Emergency Treatment Services 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Havasu Regional Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Hemet Valley Medical Center 334 667 125 24 17 275 643 162 35 35 189 443 142 52 61
Inland Valley Medical Center 604 348 76 13 0 571 319 63 15 4 568 416 79 7 0
JFK - John F Kennedy Memorial Hospital 647 27 1 0 0 705 46 0 0 0 738 29 2 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Anaheim 1 4 0 0 1 1 3 1 0 0 2 5 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Fontana 13 8 0 0 0 13 11 9 3 0 9 17 1 1 0
Kaiser Permanente, Irvine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Los Angeles (Sunset) 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Moreno Valley 179 110 29 3 1 167 145 42 10 1 218 133 22 4 3
Kaiser Permanente, Ontario 61 56 15 2 0 55 91 17 4 2 60 104 26 9 2
Kaiser Permanente, Riverside 204 239 78 20 5 184 216 87 28 13 235 256 76 22 4
Kaiser Permanente, San Diego 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kidney Institute at Eisenhower Medical Center 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Kindred Hospital, Riverside 1 1 1 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0
La Paz Regional Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loma Linda University Behavioral Medicine Center 1 0 0 0 0 1 2 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Loma Linda University Heart and Surgical Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0
Loma Linda University Medical Center 47 70 13 1 0 52 59 4 2 0 35 67 14 1 1
Loma Linda University Medical Center, East Campus Hospital 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loma Linda University Medical Center, Murrieta 371 410 35 7 2 358 356 54 23 20 325 468 74 18 17
Menifee Valley Medical Center 132 141 10 9 0 52 139 54 18 14 87 160 100 27 16
Mission Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0
Mountainview Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Not Applicable 1 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 0 2 1 0 0 0
Not Recorded 1 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Orange County Global Medical Center 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Other Not Listed 5 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0
Palo Verde Hospital 135 8 1 0 0 147 8 1 0 0 152 14 2 0 0
Palomar Health Downtown Campus 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Palomar Medical Center 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parkview Community Hospital Medical Center 490 237 5 0 0 411 288 50 11 7 397 310 38 9 4
Phoenix Children's Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Pomona Valley Hospital Medical Center 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Rady Children's Hospital 2 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0
Rancho Springs Medical Center 280 156 28 9 5 303 201 44 9 8 331 225 38 6 1
Redlands Community Hospital 22 23 1 0 0 18 32 8 0 2 11 30 6 3 1
Riverside Community Hospital 443 790 184 30 13 415 762 265 53 21 409 779 227 48 7
Riverside University Health System Medical Center 1003 569 9 0 0 1009 692 13 0 0 983 692 13 0 0
San Antonio Regional Hospital 3 3 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0
San Gorgonio Memorial Hospital 298 251 20 1 1 219 314 65 16 10 220 345 76 22 13
Sharp Memorial Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
St. Bernardine Medical Center 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0
St. Joseph Hospital, Orange 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
St. Jude Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Temecula Valley Hospital 267 283 28 5 1 240 274 44 3 1 220 305 92 10 2

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

25



Riverside County EMS Agency APOT - 2 Cont...
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Tri-City Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
University of California, Irvine Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
University of California, San Diego Medical Center 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
University of California, San Diego, John M. & Sally B. Thornton Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Veterans Administration Loma Linda Healthcare System 15 10 0 0 0 21 14 0 0 0 20 7 0 0 0

Sacramento County EMS Agency

Sacramento County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Kaiser Permanente, Roseville  Medical Center 662 1:09:00 616 1:27:29 714 1:27:23
Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 1536 0:57:41 1510 1:14:11 1618 1:24:08
Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 1498 1:08:35 1510 1:19:11 1477 1:24:03
Adventist Health Lodi Memorial 46 0:23:17 72 0:34:14 29 0:34:25
Marshall Medical Center 1 0:27:40 3 0:20:18 2 2:26:53
Mercy General Hospital 877 0:56:43 911 1:07:36 1035 1:22:32
Mercy Hospital of Folsom 585 0:26:03 628 0:36:53 642 0:44:47
Mercy San Juan Medical Center 1505 1:29:34 1441 1:35:26 875 1:42:31
Methodist Hospital of Sacramento 754 0:50:35 821 1:09:31 587 1:35:59
Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital 2 0:30:54 0 0:00:00 1 0:21:25
Sutter Davis Hospital 2 0:15:07 0 0:00:00 2 1:15:37
Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 1386 1:14:04 1307 1:32:49 1415 1:19:07
Sutter Roseville Medical Center 413 0:32:50 458 0:34:18 485 0:35:06
UC Davis Medical Center 1310 0:53:23 1278 1:19:29 1256 2:05:22
Sacramento VA Medical Center 197 0:19:59 150 0:18:05 169 0:17:31
Woodland Memorial Hospital 5 0:16:29 7 0:15:52

Sacramento County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Kaiser Permanente, Roseville  Medical Center 293 281 74 10 4 213 266 115 20 2 258 317 105 32 2
Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 551 848 125 9 3 501 760 212 31 6 517 815 216 56 14
Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 925 393 121 51 8 902 383 157 44 24 895 359 145 45 33
Adventist Health Lodi Memorial 38 8 0 0 0 52 18 2 0 0 0 23 5 1 0
Marshall Medical Center 0 1 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0
Mercy General Hospital 325 473 74 4 1 320 471 99 18 3 338 503 164 22 8
Mercy Hospital of Folsom 475 106 4 0 0 443 159 19 7 0 418 184 33 6 1
Mercy San Juan Medical Center 716 530 173 68 18 711 493 144 66 27 0 536 224 70 45
Methodist Hospital of Sacramento 270 435 47 2 0 245 468 87 17 4 0 410 127 36 14
Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Sutter Davis Hospital 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0
Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 380 777 191 30 8 308 687 238 54 20 374 802 191 42 6
Sutter Roseville Medical Center 267 140 6 0 0 291 154 11 2 0 327 150 7 0 1
UC Davis Medical Center 797 393 78 24 18 746 367 77 38 50 703 319 102 50 82
Sacramento VA Medical Center 177 19 1 0 0 138 11 1 0 0 159 10 0 0 0
Woodland Memorial Hospital 5 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

26



San Benito County EMS Agency

San Benito County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Hazel Hawkins 173 0:09:25 184 0:10:00 225 0:11:05
Natividad Medical Center 5 0:09:30 8 0:14:23 5 0:13:49
Salinas Valley Memorial Hospital 4 0:17:57 5 0:18:18
St. Louise Regional Hospital 2 0:05:31 1 0:05:28 2 0:09:03
Watsonville Community Hospital 1 0:05:49

San Benito County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Hazel Hawkins 173 0 0 0 0 181 3 0 0 0 223 2 0 0 0
Natividad Medical Center 5 0 0 0 0 7 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0
Salinas Valley Memorial Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0
St. Louise Regional Hospital 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Watsonville Community Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

San Diego County EMS Agency

San Diego County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Alvarado Hospital Medical Center 838 0:35:55 785 0:58:57 814 1:10:37
Kaiser San Diego Medical Center 340 1:03:05 413 0:45:50 376 1:05:56
Kaiser Zion Medical Center 531 1:12:50 497 1:11:05 537 1:24:17
Naval Medical Center, San Diego 207 0:29:12 174 0:29:42 149 0:23:30
Palomar Medical Center 1948 0:26:01 1919 0:31:23 2095 0:46:40
Palomar Medical Center-Poway 444 0:51:47 460 1:13:57 463 1:10:58
Paradise Valley Hospital 337 1:20:12 333 1:11:23 314 0:57:12
Rady Childrens Hospital 232 0:35:18 194 0:33:08 188 0:26:59
Scripps Memorial Encinitas 735 0:35:17 770 0:52:35 827 0:55:24
Scripps Memorial La Jolla 956 0:32:31 942 0:36:09 982 0:41:59
Scripps Mercy Chula Vista 792 0:51:06 674 0:54:02 826 1:07:16
Scripps Mercy San Diego 1175 0:42:21 1124 0:43:54 1155 0:44:27
Sharp Chula Vista Medical Center 991 0:51:24 871 1:09:37 951 1:20:20
Sharp Coronado Hospital 225 0:28:32 198 0:26:08 281 0:22:13
Sharp Grossmont Hospital 1741 0:44:18 1775 1:01:27 1718 1:00:21
Sharp Memorial Hospital 1382 0:38:45 1324 0:43:54 1339 0:47:59
Temecula Valley Hospital 174 0:58:25 142 0:53:08 213 1:08:06
Tri-City Medical Center 800 0:54:31 581 1:02:56 710 1:14:48
UCSD La Jolla-Thornton 228 1:27:39 238 1:01:11 216 1:29:25
UCSD Medical Center 1050 1:04:08 1011 0:57:04 1070 1:01:21

San Diego County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Alvarado Hospital Medical Center 595 228 15 0 0 468 243 57 12 5 398 298 91 18 9
Kaiser San Diego Medical Center 169 133 30 6 2 237 157 16 2 1 202 132 36 5 1
Kaiser Zion Medical Center 249 211 58 11 2 232 202 52 9 2 243 187 87 19 1
Naval Medical Center, San Diego 172 30 3 2 0 148 20 4 1 1 130 18 1 0 0
Palomar Medical Center 1560 379 7 1 1 1409 474 29 5 2 1203 782 105 5 0
Palomar Medical Center-Poway 301 106 33 4 0 255 145 47 10 3 243 152 53 12 3

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

27



San Diego County EMS Agency APOT - 2 Cont...
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Paradise Valley Hospital 185 100 36 12 4 173 112 43 2 3 176 111 23 2 2
Rady Childrens Hospital 154 75 3 0 0 131 60 3 0 0 144 42 2 0 0
Scripps Memorial Encinitas 531 182 20 1 1 465 257 43 5 0 463 297 61 6 0
Scripps Memorial La Jolla 738 193 15 4 6 705 204 27 2 4 691 250 31 2 8
Scripps Mercy Chula Vista 432 301 48 9 2 340 277 50 2 5 414 308 86 15 3
Scripps Mercy San Diego 697 429 36 6 7 684 387 44 6 3 700 411 33 4 7
Sharp Chula Vista Medical Center 571 350 59 7 4 377 372 105 9 8 453 347 109 31 11
Sharp Coronado Hospital 188 31 3 1 2 173 24 1 0 0 247 28 5 0 1
Sharp Grossmont Hospital 1087 566 75 12 1 978 618 122 36 21 948 600 133 27 10
Sharp Memorial Hospital 995 339 37 7 4 911 349 55 6 3 879 383 66 7 4
Temecula Valley Hospital 97 61 10 2 4 71 64 4 2 1 106 79 18 8 2
Tri-City Medical Center 397 342 52 8 1 268 247 52 10 4 278 322 86 18 6
UCSD La Jolla-Thornton 120 65 27 9 7 150 64 21 1 2 107 66 32 9 2
UCSD Medical Center 511 420 99 10 10 506 414 71 9 11 523 436 86 17 8

San Francisco County EMS Agency

San Francisco County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Alameda County Medical Center, Highland 1 0:06:00 0 0:00:00
California Pacific Medical Center, Davies Campus Hospital 342 0:41:00 342 0:48:00 363 0:50:00
Chinese Hospital 126 0:19:00 152 0:24:00 170 0:23:00
Kaiser Permanente, San Francisco 642 0:33:00 625 0:41:00 687 0:40:00
Kaiser Permanente, South San Francisco 56 0:27:00 59 0:29:00 47 0:30:00
Saint Francis Memorial Hospital 970 0:32:00 944 0:33:00 1,064 0:34:00
Seton Medical Center 84 0:23:00 86 0:25:00 114 0:37:00
St. Mary's Medical Center 558 0:37:00 633 0:46:00 599 1:04:00
UCSF Medical Center at Mission Bay 123 0:26:00 108 0:28:00 122 0:25:00
UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 934 0:44:00 952 0:46:00 935 1:03:00
Veterans Administration Medical Center, San Francisco 83 0:19:00 102 0:21:00 126 0:20:00
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital 1109 0:32:00 1177 0:38:00 1181 0:53:00

San Francisco County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Alameda County Medical Center, Highland 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
California Pacific Medical Center, Davies Campus Hospital 213 111 13 5 0 193 129 16 4 0 185 155 21 2 0
Chinese Hospital 114 12 0 0 0 126 26 0 0 0 140 29 1 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, San Francisco 421 209 10 2 0 371 230 18 6 0 407 241 28 6 5
Kaiser Permanente, South San Francisco 45 10 1 0 0 44 15 0 0 0 37 10 0 0 0
Saint Francis Memorial Hospital 691 264 13 2 0 644 287 12 1 0 731 306 23 3 1
Seton Medical Center 70 14 0 0 0 70 15 1 0 0 86 27 1 0 0
St. Mary's Medical Center 368 173 13 3 1 345 251 33 3 1 274 261 44 14 6
UCSF Medical Center at Mission Bay 101 21 1 0 0 87 21 0 0 0 101 19 2 0 0
UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 443 459 29 3 0 416 489 43 2 2 359 471 83 12 10
Veterans Administration Medical Center, San Francisco 76 7 0 0 0 91 11 0 0 0 114 12 0 0 0
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital 748 350 9 1 1 750 391 34 2 0 626 464 68 15 8

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

28



San Joaquin County EMS Agency

San Joaquin County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health Lodi Memorial 693 0:34:29 722 0:35:22 783 0:42:24
Dameron Hospital 516 0:35:56 555 0:38:12 556 0:40:23
Doctors Hospital Manteca 367 0:37:46 350 0:32:01 448 0:42:21
Kaiser Permanente, Manteca 317 0:24:23 319 0:28:00 363 0:33:03
San Joaquin General Hospital 1203 0:38:41 1178 0:44:39 1,068 0:49:48
St. Joseph's Medical Center of Stockton 2,228 0:45:31 2167 0:51:00 2,131 0:55:16
Sutter Tracy Community Hospital 335 0:35:36 358 0:44:08 383 0:40:18
Doctors Medical Center 24 0:35:35 25 0:37:53 40 0:50:48
Kaiser Permanente, Modesto 77 0:42:10 81 0:28:30 71 0:35:03
Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 1 1:24:00
Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 9 1:14:08 11 0:55:00 6 1:58:31
Memorial Medical Center 36 0:18:59 41 0:48:19 41 0:27:39
Mercy San Juan 0 0:00:00 1 0:46:26
Oak Valley Hospital 4 0:09:18 4 0:12:01 6 0:16:28
Regional Medical Center 1 0:02:00
UC Davis Medical Center 4 0:26:30 2 0:20:00 1 0:14:16
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital and Trauma Center 3 0:07:13 1 0:13:50

San Joaquin County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health Lodi Memorial 462 217 14 0 0 438 274 10 0 0 420 333 28 2 0
Dameron Hospital 310 194 11 1 0 330 213 8 4 0 313 221 21 1 0
Doctors Hospital Manteca 268 91 8 0 0 261 82 6 0 1 290 146 10 2 0
Kaiser Permanente, Manteca 255 61 1 0 0 242 72 4 1 0 241 120 2 0 0
San Joaquin General Hospital 674 504 25 0 0 560 561 54 3 0 477 531 56 3 1
St. Joseph's Medical Center of Stockton 1019 1111 94 4 0 936 1096 123 12 0 749 1207 163 11 1
Sutter Tracy Community Hospital 200 131 3 1 0 166 178 14 0 0 214 159 9 1 0
Doctors Medical Center 16 8 0 0 0 17 6 2 0 0 30 7 3 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Modesto 46 27 4 0 0 58 22 1 0 0 49 21 0 0 2
Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 6 1 2 0 0 5 4 1 1 0 1 3 1 0 1
Memorial Medical Center 32 4 0 0 0 22 16 3 0 0 33 7 1 0 0
Mercy San Juan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Oak Valley Hospital 4 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0
Regional Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
UC Davis Medical Center 2 1 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital and Trauma Center 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

San Luis Obispo County EMS Agency

San Luis Obispo County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Arroyo Grande Community Hospital 221 0:10:02 214 0:12:08 236 0:13:34
French Hospital Medical Center 265 0:10:26 236 0:12:45 340 0:17:41
Marian Medical Center (Santa Barbara Co) 117 0:12:55 120 0:10:49 136 0:13:23
Sierra Vista Regional Medical Center 409 0:12:03 367 0:12:41 380 0:14:56
Twin Cities Community Hospital 364 0:09:59 339 0:12:00 441 0:13:51

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

29



San Luis Obispo County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Arroyo Grande Community Hospital 219 2 0 0 0 209 3 2 0 0 226 10 0 0 0
French Hospital Medical Center 261 4 0 0 0 228 8 0 0 0 311 27 2 0 0
Marian Medical Center (Santa Barbara Co) 115 2 0 0 0 118 2 0 0 0 132 4 0 0 0
Sierra Vista Regional Medical Center 395 13 1 0 0 353 14 0 0 0 358 20 2 0 0
Twin Cities Community Hospital 359 5 0 0 0 335 4 0 0 0 426 14 1 0 0

San Mateo County EMS Agency

San Mateo County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

CPMC-Van Ness 6 0:44:29 9 0:19:57 5 1:16:12
California Pacific Medical Center, Davies Campus Hospital 5 0:12:07 5 0:14:11 2 0:08:22
Dominican Hospital, Santa Cruz 2 0:08:29
Eden Medical Center 2 0:03:11
El Camino Hospital 1 0:00:25 1 0:05:00
Kaiser Permanente, Redwood City 368 0:12:39 398 0:13:43 409 0:12:54
Kaiser Permanente, San Francisco 1 0:10:00 6 0:30:40 3 0:29:57
Kaiser Permanente, South San Francisco 350 0:14:12 273 0:15:36 329 0:15:25
Lucile Packard Children's Hospital at Stanford 13 0:09:40 17 0:06:58 12 0:19:43
Mills-Peninsula Medical Center 1092 0:17:00 1102 0:19:26 1211 0:21:29
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital and Trauma Center 54 0:19:34 55 0:28:17 82 0:27:55
San Mateo Medical Center 263 0:14:04 242 0:13:00 293 0:14:57
San Mateo Medical Center - PES 119 0:21:22 90 0:18:25 101 0:19:25
Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 1 0:01:09
Sequoia Hospital 229 0:10:31 219 0:10:49 265 0:17:00
Seton Medical Center 344 0:12:11 337 0:13:33 345 0:18:33
Seton Medical Center, Coastside 1 0:03:21 2 0:07:48 2 0:15:12
UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 1 0:50:00 4 0:42:08 4 1:36:51
Veterans Administration Medical Center, San Francisco 1 0:02:20 5 0:10:57
Veterans Administration Palo Alto Health Care System, Palo Alto Division 30 0:07:02 44 0:09:20 40 0:10:00
UCSF Medical Center at Mission Bay 5 0:16:58 7 0:16:17 9 0:10:18
Stanford Adult Emergency Department 631 0:10:10 589 0:10:00 614 0:12:00
Stanford Pediatric Emergency Department 12 0:06:58 16 0:09:50 23 0:08:56

San Mateo County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

CPMC-Van Ness 5 0 1 0 0 8 1 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 0
California Pacific Medical Center, Davies Campus Hospital 5 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Dominican Hospital, Santa Cruz 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Eden Medical Center 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
El Camino Hospital 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Redwood City 355 13 0 0 0 385 13 0 0 0 393 14 2 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, San Francisco 1 0 0 0 0 5 1 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, South San Francisco 338 12 0 0 0 261 12 0 0 0 306 23 0 0 0
Lucile Packard Children's Hospital at Stanford 13 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 0 0 10 2 0 0 0
Mills-Peninsula Medical Center 1019 73 0 0 0 1006 94 2 0 0 1079 131 1 0 0
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital and Trauma Center 49 5 0 0 0 45 10 0 0 0 69 12 0 0 1
San Mateo Medical Center 257 6 0 0 0 231 11 0 0 0 279 14 0 0 0
San Mateo Medical Center - PES 104 15 0 0 0 82 8 0 0 0 91 10 0 0 0
Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sequoia Hospital 216 11 2 0 0 214 5 0 0 0 248 17 0 0 0
Seton Medical Center 328 15 1 0 0 323 14 0 0 0 316 28 1 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

30



San Mateo County EMS Agency APOT - 2 Cont...
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Seton Medical Center, Coastside 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
UCSF Medical Center at Parnassus 0 1 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0
Veterans Administration Medical Center, San Francisco 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0
Veterans Administration Palo Alto Health Care System, Palo Alto Division 30 0 0 0 0 44 0 0 0 0 39 1 0 0 0
UCSF Medical Center at Mission Bay 4 1 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0
Stanford Adult Emergency Department 623 8 0 0 0 577 12 0 0 0 605 9 0 0 0
Stanford Pediatric Emergency Department 12 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 22 1 0 0 0

Santa Barbara County EMS Agency

Santa Barbara County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Goleta Valley Cottage Hospital 265 0:09:43 233 0:10:32 204 0:09:43
Lompoc Valley Medical Center 302 0:09:50 268 0:10:26 337 0:10:05
Marian Regional Medical Center 776 0:11:37 796 0:12:30 881 0:11:37
Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital 1007 0:15:59 1044 0:16:15 984 0:17:01
Santa Ynez Valley Cottage Hospital 91 0:15:10 97 0:16:15 98 0:11:26
Community Memorial Hospital, San Buenaventura 2 0:13:03
Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 1 0:16:35
Ventura County Medical Center 1 0:19:36 1 0:06:25

Santa Barbara County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Goleta Valley Cottage Hospital 265 0 0 0 0 232 1 0 0 0 203 1 0 0 0
Lompoc Valley Medical Center 299 2 1 0 0 263 4 1 0 0 334 2 1 0 0
Marian Regional Medical Center 763 13 0 0 0 782 13 1 0 0 871 7 2 0 1
Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital 974 32 1 0 0 1011 30 2 0 1 937 47 0 0 0
Santa Ynez Valley Cottage Hospital 83 5 3 0 0 94 3 0 0 0 96 2 0 0 0
Community Memorial Hospital, San Buenaventura 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ronald Reagan UCLA Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ventura County Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

Santa Clara County EMS Agency

Santa Clara County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

El Camino Hospital 887 0:17:53 857 0:21:13 955 0:23:13
El Camino Hospital Los Gatos 177 0:11:03 191 0:15:03 190 0:16:38
Good Samaritan Hospital 935 0:20:44 1022 0:25:04 1085 0:26:58
Hazel Hawlins Hospital 7 0:13:50 5 0:08:36 9 0:10:26
Kaiser Fremont 15 0:22:39 11 0:49:11 18 0:27:52
Kaiser Redwood City 26 0:12:54 25 0:12:35 31 0:14:20
Kaiser San Jose 746 0:17:00 853 0:20:10 842 0:23:09
Kaiser Santa Clara 855 0:33:32 882 0:51:13 939 0:51:44
O'Connor Hospital 1049 0:21:02 1038 0:23:33 1194 0:27:56
Palo Alto Veterans 83 0:09:36 98 0:10:34 97 0:13:28
Regional Medical Center 1208 0:22:39 1253 0:37:59 1262 0:52:00
Saint Louise Regional Hospital 392 0:11:36 417 0:13:58 415 0:16:50

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

31



Santa Clara County EMS Agency APOT -1 Cont...

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 1307 1:00:50 1222 0:58:33 1244 1:06:17
Santa Clara Valley Medical EPS 25 0:29:16 25 0:31:39 35 0:34:36
Sequoia Hospital 7 0:10:41 2 0:08:39 6 0:06:40
Stanford Health Care Hospital 674 0:09:35 682 0:10:50 727 0:10:52
Washington Hospital 9 0:23:44 16 1:30:09 18 0:47:36
Watsonville Community Hospital 0 0:00:00 1 0:19:01 0 0:00:00

Santa Clara County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

El Camino Hospital 834 51 1 1 0 767 87 3 0 0 826 119 9 1 0
El Camino Hospital Los Gatos 171 5 1 0 0 175 12 3 1 0 178 10 2 0 0
Good Samaritan Hospital 844 90 1 0 0 860 145 16 1 0 895 169 20 1 0
Hazel Hawlins Hospital 7 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0
Kaiser Fremont 13 1 1 0 0 8 3 0 0 0 15 2 0 1 0
Kaiser Redwood City 25 1 0 0 0 24 1 0 0 0 30 1 0 0 0
Kaiser San Jose 709 37 0 0 0 778 72 3 0 0 727 111 4 0 0
Kaiser Santa Clara 628 217 10 0 0 531 295 50 5 1 538 340 60 1 0
O'Connor Hospital 943 100 6 0 0 907 125 4 2 0 983 187 24 0 0
Palo Alto Veterans 81 2 0 0 0 95 2 1 0 0 97 0 0 0 0
Regional Medical Center 1073 124 10 1 0 1023 171 49 9 1 959 194 82 16 11
Saint Louise Regional Hospital 389 3 0 0 0 406 10 1 0 0 391 18 4 2 0
Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 907 270 106 24 0 853 253 103 11 2 841 265 118 16 4
Santa Clara Valley Medical EPS 15 9 1 0 0 18 6 1 0 0 24 11 0 0 0
Sequoia Hospital 7 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0
Stanford Health Care Hospital 669 5 0 0 0 677 4 1 0 0 720 7 0 0 0
Washington Hospital 7 2 0 0 0 9 3 3 1 0 8 8 2 0 0
Watsonville Community Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Santa Cruz County EMS Agency

Santa Cruz County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Dominican Hospital, Santa Cruz 876 0:18:15 839 0:24:18 975 0:23:01
Good Samaritan Hospital, San Jose 4 0:18:37 0 0:00:00 1 0:15:00
Natividad Medical Center 15 0:12:45 5 0:12:50 8 0:24:46
Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 27 0:13:50 18 0:20:09 12 0:12:43
Watsonville Community Hospital 299 0:18:15 334 0:17:27 348 0:21:07

Santa Cruz County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Dominican Hospital, Santa Cruz 802 71 3 0 0 705 126 8 0 0 839 130 5 0 0
Good Samaritan Hospital, San Jose 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Natividad Medical Center 14 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 7 1 0 0 0
Santa Clara Valley Medical Center 26 1 0 0 0 16 2 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 0
Watsonville Community Hospital 277 22 0 0 0 312 22 0 0 0 306 42 0 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

32



Sierra-Sacramento Valley EMS Agency

Sierra-Sacramento Valley EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health Rideout 1579 0:11:01 1515 0:13:00 1630 0:21:00
Asante Rogue Regional Medical Center 1 0:02:00 1 0:08:00
Banner Lassen Medical Center 1 0:01:00
Barton Memorial Hospital 1 0:05:00
California Pacific Medical Center, Davies Campus Hospital 1 0:07:00 0 0:00:00
Colusa Medical Center 51 0:09:00 54 0:10:00 62 0:09:00
Doctors on Duty 1 0:07:00
Enloe Medical Center, Cohasset 1 0:01:00
Enloe Medical Center, Esplanade 1287 0:11:00 1312 0:12:00 1405 0:12:00
Enloe Rehabilitation Center 1 0:02:00
Fairchild Medical Center 159 0:05:00 231 0:06:00 162 0:05:00
Glenn Medical Center 86 0:08:00 90 0:06:00 104 0:06:00
Kaiser Permanente, Roseville Medical Center 752 1:03:00 764 1:27:00 778 1:27:00
Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 4 0:21:00 2 0:26:00 2 1:13:00
Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 2 2:52:00
Kaiser Permanente, Vacaville 1 0:01:00
Mayers Memorial Hospital District 28 0:05:00 39 0:04:00 45 0:04:00
Medical Office/Clinic 1 0:39:00
Mercy General Hospital 6 0:08:00 7 0:17:00 7 0:43:00
Mercy Hospital of Folsom 5 0:22:00 6 0:14:00 8 0:43:00
Mercy Medical Center, Mt. Shasta 140 0:05:00 147 0:05:00 116 0:05:00
Mercy Medical Center, Redding 1161 0:31:00 1180 0:37:00 1310 0:43:00
Mercy San Juan Medical Center 17 1:13:00 20 0:52:00 20 2:13:00
Methodist Hospital of Sacramento 1 0:44:00
Not Recorded 3 0:11:00 3 0:24:00
Orchard Hospital 56 0:10:00 53 0:09:00 90 0:13:00
Oroville Hospital 631 0:13:42 635 0:16:00 719 0:17:00
Other Not Listed 1 0:02:00 1 0:06:00
Renown Regional Medical Center 12 0:10:00 16 0:07:00 18 0:06:00
Sacramento VA Medical Center 4 0:17:00 7 0:22:00 4 0:20:00
Saint Mary's Regional Medical Center 1 0:08:00 6 0:11:00 6 0:04:00
Seneca District Hospital 1 0:04:00
Shasta Regional Medical Center 525 1:04:00 497 1:15:00 617 0:45:00
Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital 455 0:10:00 514 0:09:00 502 0:10:00
Sky Lakes Medical Center 15 0:05:00 14 0:04:00 8 0:05:00
St. Elizabeth Community Hospital 443 0:10:00 432 0:10:00 514 0:11:00
Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital 437 0:19:00 433 0:20:00 444 0:20:00
Sutter Davis Hospital 1 0:07:00
Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 2 1:36:00 4 1:25:00 3 0:39:00
Sutter Roseville Medical Center 1351 0:31:00 1470 0:34:00 1514 0:34:00
Tahoe Forest Hospital 84 0:06:00 104 0:07:00 192 0:06:00
UC Davis Medical Center 23 0:25:00 15 0:35:00 27 2:38:00
Vibra Hospital of Northern California 3 0:21:00 3 0:15:00
Woodland Memorial Hospital 3 0:14:47 8 0:24:00 5 0:15:00

Sierra-Sacramento Valley EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health Rideout 1545 34 0 0 0 1443 64 7 1 0 1450 152 27 1 0
Asante Rogue Regional Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Banner Lassen Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Barton Memorial Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

33



Sierra-Sacramento Valley EMS Agency APOT - 2 Cont...
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

California Pacific Medical Center, Davies Campus Hospital 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Colusa Medical Center 51 0 0 0 0 53 1 0 0 0 62 0 0 0 0
Doctors on Duty 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Enloe Medical Center, Cohasset 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Enloe Medical Center, Esplanade 1281 6 0 0 0 1301 11 0 0 0 1388 17 0 0 0
Enloe Rehabilitation Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Fairchild Medical Center 159 0 0 0 0 229 2 0 0 0 160 2 0 0 0
Glenn Medical Center 86 0 0 0 0 90 0 0 0 0 102 2 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Roseville Medical Center 283 381 78 10 0 251 349 134 23 7 244 377 129 24 4
Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 3 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Kaiser Permanente, Vacaville 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mayers Memorial Hospital District 28 0 0 0 0 39 0 0 0 0 45 0 0 0 0
Medical Office/Clinic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Mercy General Hospital 6 0 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 0 4 3 0 0 0
Mercy Hospital of Folsom 4 1 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0
Mercy Medical Center, Mt. Shasta 139 1 0 0 0 147 0 0 0 0 115 1 0 0 0
Mercy Medical Center, Redding 903 230 23 3 2 869 281 26 3 1 926 303 64 15 2
Mercy San Juan Medical Center 9 5 2 1 0 6 12 1 1 0 7 7 3 2 1
Methodist Hospital of Sacramento 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Not Recorded 3 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Orchard Hospital 54 2 0 0 0 52 1 0 0 0 87 3 0 0 0
Oroville Hospital 614 16 1 0 0 602 33 0 0 0 674 45 0 0 0
Other Not Listed 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Renown Regional Medical Center 12 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0
Sacramento VA Medical Center 4 0 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0
Saint Mary's Regional Medical Center 1 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0
Seneca District Hospital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Shasta Regional Medical Center 345 121 40 14 5 325 106 50 11 5 432 142 33 8 2
Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital 451 4 0 0 0 509 5 0 0 0 493 9 0 0 0
Sky Lakes Medical Center 15 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0
St. Elizabeth Community Hospital 435 8 0 0 0 424 8 0 0 0 498 14 2 0 0
Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital 402 33 2 0 0 387 46 0 0 0 397 45 2 0 0
Sutter Davis Hospital 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 0
Sutter Roseville Medical Center 856 489 6 0 0 886 559 22 3 0 936 553 24 1 0
Tahoe Forest Hospital 83 1 0 0 0 103 1 0 0 0 191 1 0 0 0
UC Davis Medical Center 17 5 0 1 0 8 6 1 0 0 12 10 1 2 2
Vibra Hospital of Northern California 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0
Woodland Memorial Hospital 3 0 0 0 0 7 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0

Solano County EMS Agency

Solano County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Children's Hospital Oakland (20059)
Contra Costa Regional (20087) 2 0:13:24 1 0:22:00
David Grant Medical Center (62054) 51 0:18:58 46 0:19:39 65 0:19:00
John Muir Concord (20179) 24 0:27:43 41 0:34:45 32 0:31:09
John Muir Walnut Creek (20180) 16 0:22:28 13 0:29:09 16 0:26:53
Kaiser Antioch (20214) 26 0:29:02 33 0:36:42 38 0:35:15
Kaiser Vacaville (20216) 586 0:21:59 992 0:22:38 706 0:23:19
Kaiser Vallejo (20193) 626 0:23:00 674 0:23:25 727 0:24:02

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

34



Solano County EMS Agency APOT -1 Cont...

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Kaiser Walnut Creek (20208) 3 0:32:23
Landing Zone (62315) 1 0:00:03
Lodi Memorial (65057) 12 0:19:53 6 0:27:56 8 0:45:17
NorthBay Medical Center (20309) 868 0:27:06 873 0:26:22 844 0:24:44
NorthBay VacaValley (20310) 407 0:19:00 422 0:20:58 441 0:28:33
Queen of the Valley (20362) 2 0:24:01 1 0:00:01 5 0:31:24
Sutter Davis (20473) 31 0:22:05 28 0:25:28 32 0:22:27
Sutter Delta (20474) 17 0:56:11 13 0:53:42 23 1:40:35
Sutter Solano (20482) 416 0:22:00 430 0:22:24 508 0:23:30
UC Davis Medical Center (20508) 1 0:29:38
Woodland Memorial Hospital (20533) 2 0:23:07 5 0:25:13

Solano County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Children's Hospital Oakland (20059) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contra Costa Regional (20087) 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
David Grant Medical Center (62054) 50 3 0 0 0 41 5 0 0 0 63 2 0 0 0
John Muir Concord (20179) 17 6 1 0 0 21 20 0 0 0 20 10 1 1 0
John Muir Walnut Creek (20180) 15 1 0 0 0 9 4 0 0 0 11 5 0 0 0
Kaiser Antioch (20214) 18 8 0 0 0 14 18 1 0 0 18 19 1 0 0
Kaiser Vacaville (20216) 509 77 0 0 0 831 160 1 0 0 582 124 0 0 0
Kaiser Vallejo (20193) 514 111 1 0 0 614 113 0 0 0 588 139 0 0 0
Kaiser Walnut Creek (20208) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0
Landing Zone (62315) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Lodi Memorial (65057) 11 1 0 0 0 4 2 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0
NorthBay Medical Center (20309) 668 191 9 0 0 680 191 1 1 0 665 173 3 1 1
NorthBay VacaValley (20310) 370 36 1 0 0 371 49 2 0 0 357 81 3 0 0
Queen of the Valley (20362) 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 0
Sutter Davis (20473) 26 5 0 0 0 21 6 1 0 0 27 5 0 0 0
Sutter Delta (20474) 6 9 2 0 0 3 9 1 0 0 9 10 3 1 0
Sutter Solano (20482) 353 63 0 0 0 358 67 4 1 0 426 79 3 0 0
UC Davis Medical Center (20508) 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Woodland Memorial Hospital (20533) 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2 3 0 0 0

Stanislaus County EMS Agency

Stanislaus County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Doctors Hospital Modesto 1730 0:45:10 1682 0:56:02 1660 0:44:40
Emanuel Medical Center 607 0:39:55 532 0:37:39 569 0:48:54
Kaiser Hospital Modesto Medical Center 462 0:37:09 523 0:45:10 578 0:58:04
Memorial Hospital Los Banos 12 0:21:10 16 0:23:26 30 0:18:38
Memorial Medical Center 1532 0:38:22 1620 0:41:00 1775 0:43:26
Mercy Medical Center, Merced 2 0:32:36 8 0:47:14 8 0:42:18
Oak Valley District Hospital 45 0:21:48 50 1:52:19 47 0:57:44
Sutter Tracy Community Hospital 4 0:37:27 2 0:16:01 2 0:21:39

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

35



Stanislaus County EMS Agency APOT -2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Doctors Hospital Modesto 1156 474 80 18 2 1080 449 109 35 9 1095 465 80 18 2
Emanuel Medical Center 359 228 20 0 0 296 226 10 0 0 312 221 33 3 0
Kaiser Hospital Modesto Medical Center 291 152 18 1 0 313 185 25 0 0 305 216 42 7 8
Memorial Hospital Los Banos 9 3 0 0 0 14 2 0 0 0 27 3 0 0 0
Memorial Medical Center 1084 390 56 2 0 1069 498 46 2 5 1188 488 85 13 1
Mercy Medical Center, Merced 0 2 0 0 0 3 4 1 0 0 5 2 1 0 0
Oak Valley District Hospital 39 5 1 0 0 37 6 2 1 4 38 4 3 2 0
Sutter Tracy Community Hospital 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

Tuolumne County EMS Agency

Tuolumne County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health- Sonora 387 0:09:07 393 0:10:00 507 0:10:00
Doctors Medical Center 4 0:19:00 4 0:12:00
Memorial Medical Center 3 0:05:00 1 0:00:00 1 0:15:00

Tuolumne County EMS Agency APOT -2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health- Sonora 375 11 1 0 0 382 11 0 0 0 489 18 0 0 0
Doctors Medical Center 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0
Memorial Medical Center 3  0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

Ventura County EMS Agency

Ventura County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Adventist Health Simi Valley 621 0:18:42 651 0:19:28 679 0:18:31
Community Memorial Hospital, San Buenaventura 612 0:23:55 674 0:27:57 582 0:22:31
Los Robles Hospital & Medical Center 741 0:24:49 852 0:31:01 864 0:33:10
Ojai Valley Community Hospital 109 0:13:24 111 0:19:45 110 0:16:26
Saint John's Pleasant Valley Hospital 387 0:18:03 392 0:18:20 421 0:20:22
Saint John's Regional Medical Center 945 0:23:39 935 0:24:19 1093 0:30:45
Ventura County Medical Center 408 0:21:00 426 0:23:17 451 0:23:46
Ventura County Medical Center - Santa Paula Hospital 173 0:13:53 193 0:17:32 175 0:18:40
Cedars-Sinai Medical Center 1 0:23:40
Henry Mayo Newhall Memorial Hospital 3 0:21:35 3 0:11:00 4 0:22:14
Kaiser Permanente, Woodliand Hills 4 0:30:17 1 0:27:04
Other Not Listed 2 0:08:50
Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital 2 0:11:58 1 0:12:37 1 0:05:58
St. Johns Outpatient Surg - Oxn 1 0:12:52
Ventura County Crisis Stabilization Unit 2 0:10:11
West Hills Hospital and Medical Center 1 0:23:31 1 0:55:39

Ventura County EMS Agency APOT - 2
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Adventist Health Simi Valley 570 49 2 0 0 589 58 2 0 2 627 50 2 0 0
Community Memorial Hospital, San Buenaventura 510 95 3 0 4 510 155 9 0 0 503 74 1 2 2

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

36



Ventura County EMS Agency APOT - 2 Cont...
Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5

Los Robles Hospital & Medical Center 611 125 3 0 2 614 226 11 0 1 608 239 15 2 0
Ojai Valley Community Hospital 106 3 0 0 0 100 10 0 0 1 103 5 1 1 0
Saint John's Pleasant Valley Hospital 355 31 0 0 1 366 25 1 0 0 374 43 3 1 0
Saint John's Regional Medical Center 793 142 8 1 1 788 131 14 2 0 844 208 25 13 3
Ventura County Medical Center 363 44 1 0 0 367 56 1 0 2 381 69 0 0 1
Ventura County Medical Center - Santa Paula Hospital 170 2 1 0 0 177 14 0 0 2 159 16 0 0 0
Cedars-Sinai Medical Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Henry Mayo Newhall Memorial Hospital 2 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, Woodliand Hills 1 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
Other Not Listed 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
St. Johns Outpatient Surg - Oxn 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ventura County Crisis Stabilization Unit 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
West Hills Hospital and Medical Center 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

Yolo County EMS Agency

Yolo County EMS Agency APOT -1

Hospital Name Offloads
90th Percentile 

APOT Time
Offloads

90th 
Percentile 
APOT Time

Offloads
90th 

Percentile 
APOT Time

Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 50 1:08:00 54 1:03:03 53 1:16:50
Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 47 1:27:06 43 1:38:48 38 1:08:21
Kaiser Permanente, Vacaville 133 0:21:26 121 0:25:11 122 0:25:44
Mercy General Hospital 70 0:51:04 66 1:08:08 76 1:09:33
Sutter Davis Hospital 313 0:38:53 317 0:44:25 288 0:24:35
Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 167 1:08:49 159 1:28:36 190 1:18:50
UC Davis Medical Center 181 0:59:58 158 1:19:10 146 1:34:22
Sacramento VA Medical Center 4 0:12:05 4 0:13:07 4 0:18:36
Woodland Memorial Hospital 362 0:35:19 333 0:28:34 377 0:34:18

Yolo County EMS Agency APOT - 2

Hospital Name 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5
Kaiser Permanente, Sacramento Medical Center 13 36 6 3 0 18 33 5 0 0 12 30 12 0 0
Kaiser Permanente, South Sacramento Medical Center 23 18 0 6 1 18 17 7 2 1 22 13 1 3 0
Kaiser Permanente, Vacaville 118 16 0 0 0 102 18 0 0 0 94 29 0 0 0
Mercy General Hospital 36 32 2 2 0 20 41 1 4 0 28 43 1 3 1
Sutter Davis Hospital 257 47 6 4 0 262 50 2 5 2 258 28 3 0 0
Sutter Medical Center - Sacramento 47 108 10 8 1 37 90 12 19 2 47 118 15 9 2
UC Davis Medical Center 124 44 4 6 2 104 39 4 9 4 93 37 5 10 4
Sacramento VA Medical Center 4 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0
Woodland Memorial Hospital 296 61 5 1 1 274 53 4 0 0 301 70 5 2 0

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

October 2022 November 2022 December 2022

37



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
10901 GOLD CENTER DR., SUITE 400 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 
 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

 

 

MEETING DATE: June 14, 2023 ITEM NUMBER: 7A  

 

SUBJECT: Paramedic License Fee Structure (Options to Change)   

 

PRESENTER: Kim Lew 

 EMS Personnel Division Chief 

 

CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: X 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

No action recommended. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

The passage of Assembly Bill (AB) 450 increased the Emergency Medical 

Services Authority (EMSA) expenditures to cover a new Paramedic Disciplinary 

Board (Board), resulting in the need for an increase in paramedic licensure fees. 

The increase in fees directly impact paramedic school graduates seeking initial 

paramedic licensure, renewing and reinstating paramedics, and paramedic 

employers who elect to pay their employees’ licensure costs. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The EMSA is responsible for licensing, investigating, and administering disciplinary 

actions of paramedics. The Emergency Medical Services Personnel Fund (Fund), 

supported entirely by paramedic licensure fees, covers the maintenance and 

operating costs of these services. AB 450 [Health and Safety Code (HSC) 

1797.125] requires EMSA to expand its services to include the implementation of 

an independent Board, responsible for reviewing appeals of disciplinary actions 

taken against paramedic licensees by EMSA. AB 450 also directs the EMSA to 

utilize its Fund to cover Board costs. As a result, EMSA must either raise 

paramedic licensure fees or find alternative funding sources to remain solvent.  

 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 14, 2023 

Item #7A 

Page 2 

 

Using current and projected operational costs, EMSA determined a $65.00 

increase in all paramedic licensure application fees would be necessary to 

meet EMSA’s duty to maintain the fund at levels prescribed by HSC 1797.112. 

The following depicts the current fees and the originally proposed fee increase 

schedule:  

 

License Type                                 Current Fee      Proposed Fee  

Initial In-State license fee:           $300             $365  

Initial Out-of-State license fee:   $350    $415  

Initial Challenge license fee:      $350    $415  

Renewal license fee:                   $250    $315  

Audit Renewal license fee:         $250    $315  

Reinstatements license fee:        $300    $365  

 

However, California paramedic fees are the highest in the nation. An Increase in 

fees will create a significant financial burden for paramedic school graduates 

and a potential barrier for renewing and reinstating California paramedic 

licensees. To reduce this burden, and promote continued recruitment of 

California paramedics, the EMSA reassessed its current operational costs and 

ability to pursue alternative funding sources to augment the Fund. 

 

SUMMARY 

 

The EMSA is reassessing its current paramedic license fee structure to curtail 

increasing initial paramedic license fees for paramedic school graduates and 

seek alternative funding sources to augment the paramedic program Fund.  

This report is intended to provide an update regarding options to change the 

paramedic licensing fee structure, minimizing or alleviating any fee increase to 

cover the maintenance and operation costs of the Board.  

 

Due to current salary cost savings associated with staff vacancies and the 

delayed implementation of the Board, the EMSA Fund will remain solvent 

through SFY 2023/24 without a paramedic fee increase. The EMSA will use this 

period to draft regulatory language to establish additional service fees, adjust its 

current licensing fee schedule to minimize its impact on the paramedic 

workforce, and seek alternative funding for paramedic program costs as 

feasible.  

 

The Rulemaking packet, submitted to the Office of Administrative Law to 

increase the paramedic fees, has been withdrawn. 

 

 

 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 14, 2023 

Item #7A 

Page 3 

 

Future Fee Schedule Options 

 

1. Pursuant to HSC 1797.172 and HSC 1797.217, the EMSA may establish 

separate additional fees for the following services: 

• separate additional fees not shared by all licensing applicants  

• lapsed license verification of CEs  

• providing information related to EMS 

• contracted entities receiving any of the services associated with the 

paramedic program  

• Scope of Practice review services 

• trial study review services 

• fingerprint and criminal record checks  

2. The EMSA may also submit Budget Change Proposals for additional State 

general funds to support its programs. 

 

3. The EMSA may increase only the audit renewal and reinstatement licensure 

fees. 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

None. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

 

None. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
10901 GOLD CENTER DR., SUITE 400 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 
 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

 

 

MEETING DATE: June 14, 2023     ITEM NUMBER: 8A  

 

SUBJECT:  DMS State Disaster Response Update  

 

PRESENTER: Tim Reed EMT-P, DMS Division Chief  

 

CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: _X__ 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive information regarding the States response to recent disasters.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

No fiscal impact. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The EMSA Disaster Medical Services (DMS) division continues to monitor large-

scale events which impact healthcare throughout the state. Through programs 

including Cal-MAT, Ambulance Strike Teams, and through coordination with 

OES, CDPH, and other state agencies, the EMSA DMS division remains prepared 

to execute relevant components of the California Public Health and Medical 

Operations Plan and other EMSA Disaster Response plans to meet the needs of 

the healthcare system to respond to disasters.  

 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Lake Almanor: On May 11, 2023, a magnitude 5.5 earthquake struck Lake 

Alamdor in Plumas County.  EMSA DMS staff were in contact with the all-

Regional Disaster Health and Medical Specialists (RDHMS), who reported no 

medical needs. This information was relayed to the EMSA Executive team and 

California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES)Warning Center.  

Canyon Dam Earthquakes: On May 12, 2023, a magnitude 5.2 earthquake 

struck Canyon Dam in Plumas County. EMSA DMS staff were in contact with the 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 14, 2023 

Item #8A 

Page 2 

 

all RDHMS, who reported no medical needs. This information was relayed to the 

EMSA Executive team and the CalOES Warning Center. 

 

Winter storms/flooding: Much like December and early January, the state 

experienced a series of “atmospheric river” storms again in February through 

April that caused significant damage and flooding throughout the state.  The 

EMSA response included: 

• Ambulance Strike Teams (ASTs): 1 ASTs was staged in the Tulare and Fresno 

area, and ambulances were provided upon request for work in Tulare 

County.  

• Cal-MAT Team:  

o One 14-member Cal-MAT team was deployed to Santa Cruz 

County for 22 days to provide care at an evacuation shelter in 

Watsonville. 197 patient contact, 91 were treated, with the transfer 

of 5 patients to a higher level of care.  

o One 10-member Cal-MAT team was deployed to Tulare County for 

14 day to provide care at the Cal-Fire base camp. 104 patient 

contacts, 3 were treated, and none were transferred for a higher 

level of care.  

 
 

DISCUSSION 

 

None. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

 

None 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY              GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
10901 GOLD CENTER DR., SUITE 400 

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670 

(916) 322-4336 FAX (916) 324-2875 
 

 

 

COMMISSION ON EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

QUARTERLY MEETING 

 

 

MEETING DATE: June 14, 2023     ITEM NUMBER: 8B  

 

SUBJECT:  2023 Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation (APEC) Summit Update 

 

PRESENTER: Tim Reed EMT-P, DMS Division Chief  

 

CONSENT:  ___   ACTION: ____  INFORMATION: _X__ 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive information regarding the States response to recent disasters.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

No fiscal impact. 

 

BACKGROUND 

In 2023, the United States will chair the Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation 

(APEC) inter-governmental forum, which brings together 21 economies from 

around the Asia-Pacific area to collaborate on the shared goal of creating a 

more open, resilient, sustainable, and peaceful future for the people of the 

world’s most dynamic region. 

 

SUMMARY 

 

On March 24, 2023, the Secretary of Homeland Security gave the formal 

National Special Security Event (NSSE) designation of the 2023 APEC Summit in 

San Francisco, CA. This designation brings the full force of the federal 

government to bear in developing event security and incident management 

plans to ensure the safety of all participants. The 2023 APEC NSSE designation is 

from on or about November 15, 2023, through on or about November 18, 2023. 

The lead federal agencies are the United States Secret Service, FBI, and FEMA. 

 

The planning framework created an executive steering committee and 21 

subcommittees. As needed, the executive committee comprises lead planning 



Commission on Emergency Medical Services 

June 14, 2023 

Item #8A 

Page 2 

 

representatives from USSS, FBI, FEMA, primary state & local agencies, and other 

federal agencies. Interagency subject matter experts and stakeholders staff the 

subcommittees. Of those 21 subcommittees, EMSA is involved in two, Fire/Life-

Safety/HAZMAT and Health and Medical.  The USSS and San Francisco Fire 

Department co-chair both of these subcommittees; EMSA is on the committees 

to provide subject matter expertise and fulfill any unmet needs identified by 

USSS and SFFD.  
 

DISCUSSION 

 

None. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

 

None 


	0_June 2023 Agenda_
	EMSA Minutes  03-15-23
	4A_FiscalAdmin
	4B_ Legal Unit Staff report
	4C_EnforcementReport
	5A_Legislative Report
	5A_Legislative Update_March_2023

	5B_Regulations Report
	5B_Regulations Update_March_2023

	5C PDRB Update
	6A_CEMSIS_REPORT
	6B_APOT_Update
	6B_APOT_Update_Attachment
	7A_EMS Personnel_Fee Options 
	8A_ State response on recent disasters
	8B_State APEC Update



